
Notice of Meeting

Planning Control 
Committee

Date: Tuesday 6 November 2018

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Main Hall, Crosfield Hall, Broadwater Road, Romsey, Hampshire, 
SO51 8GL

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Sally Prior - 01264 368024
sprior@testvalley.gov.uk

Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,

SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officer and these 
recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


Membership of Planning Control Committee

MEMBER WARD

Councillor J Budzynski (Chairman) Andover (Winton)

Councillor J Neal (Vice-Chairman) Andover (Millway)

Councillor G Bailey MBE Blackwater

Councillor C Borg-Neal Andover (Harroway)

Councillor P Boulton Broughton & Stockbridge

Councillor P Bundy Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams

Councillor D Busk Broughton & Stockbridge

Councillor M Cooper Romsey (Tadburn)

Councillor A Dowden Valley Park

Councillor C Dowden North Baddesley

Councillor A Finlay Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams

Councillor M Hatley Ampfield & Braishfield

Councillor S Hawke Andover (Millway)

Councillor I Hibberd Romsey Extra

Councillor J Lovell Andover (Winton)

Councillor T Preston Andover (Alamein)

Councillor I Richards Romsey (Abbey)

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018



Planning Control Committee

Tuesday 6 November 2018

AGENDA

The order of these items may change as a result of members
of the public wishing to speak

1  Apologies

2  Public Participation

3  Declarations of Interest

4  Urgent Items

5  Minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 2018

6  Information Notes 4 - 9

7  18/01953/FULLS - 24.07.2018 10 - 46

(RECOMMENDATION OF SOUTHERN AREA 
PLANNING COMMITTEE: REFUSE)
(RECOMMENDATION OF HEAD OF PLANNING AND 
BUILDING: PERMISSION)
SITE: Land adjacent to Meadow View, Houghton, 
Stockbridge, SO20 6LT, HOUGHTON
CASE OFFICER: Ms Astrid Lynn

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018



TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

INFORMATION NOTES

Availability of Background Papers

Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed on 
the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to the 
Head of Planning and Building.

Reasons for Committee Considerations

Applications are referred to the Planning Control Committee from the Northern or 
Southern Area Planning Committees where the Head of Planning and Building has 
advised that there is a possible conflict with policy, public interest or possible claim 
for costs against the Council.

The Planning Control Committee has the authority to determine those applications 
within policy or very exceptionally outwith policy and to recommend to the Cabinet 
and to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee revisions to policy resulting from its 
determination of applications.

Approximately 15% of all applications are determined by Committee.  The others are 
determined by the Head of Planning and Building in accordance with the Council's 
Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s Constitution.

Public Speaking at the Meeting

The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, 
Weyhill Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Committee 
Administrator within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to 
address the Committee.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 4

ITEM 6



Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors with 
prejudicial interests, three minutes for the Parish Council, three minutes for all 
objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for the applicant/agent. 
Where there are multiple supporters or multiple objectors wishing to speak the 
Chairman may limit individual speakers to less than three minutes with a view to 
accommodating multiple speakers within the three minute time limit.  Speakers may 
be asked questions by the Members of the Committee, but are not permitted to ask 
questions of others or to join in the debate.  Speakers are not permitted to circulate 
or display plans, photographs, illustrations or textual material during the Committee 
meeting as any such material should be sent to the Members and officers in advance 
of the meeting to allow them time to consider the content.

Content of Officer’s Report

It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full response 
must ask to consult the application file.

Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions

The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer's recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee.

In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council.

Conditions and Reasons for Refusal

Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 5



Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made.

Decisions Subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation

For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority.

New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing fields 
and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport.

Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application.

Deferred Applications

Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows: 

* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 
would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed.

* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 
amended plans have not been provided or there has been insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments.  

* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments.

* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 
proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 6



Visual Display of Plans and Photographs

Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application in the reception areas in Beech 
Hurst, Andover or the Former Magistrates Court office, Romsey.  Plans displayed at 
the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to the written 
reports.

Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers.

Human Rights

"The European Convention on Human Rights" ("ECHR") was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 ("HRA"), as from October 2000.

The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR. 

There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions:

* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property.

* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life.

It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of "proportionality", any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary.

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision-making processes of the Committee.  However, members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action.

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC)

The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
2006 as follows:  "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have 
regard, so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the 
purpose of conserving biodiversity".

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 7



It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process leading 
up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further regard is had 
in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the biodiversity 
checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental Statements and 
any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on biodiversity aspects 
of the proposals.

Provided any recommendations arising from these processes are conditioned as part 
of any grant of planning permission (or included in reasons for refusal of any planning 
application) then the duty to ensure that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as 
far as practically possible, will be considered to have been met.

Other Legislation

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016).  Material 
considerations are defined by Case Law and includes, amongst other things, draft 
Development Plan Documents (DPD), Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
and other relevant guidance including Development Briefs, Government advice, 
amenity considerations, crime and community safety, traffic generation and safety.

On the 24 July 2018 the Government published a revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous NPPF 
published in 2012.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.  

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 
but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.  

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means:

 Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or

 Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless:

o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or 
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 8



o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the 
revised NPPF when taken as a whole.  

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).  

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 9



APPLICATION NO. 18/01953/FULLS
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH
REGISTERED 24.07.2018
APPLICANT Mr and Mrs L. Ashford
SITE Land adjacent to Meadow View, Houghton, 

Stockbridge, SO20 6LT, HOUGHTON 
PROPOSAL Erection of a detached dwelling
AMENDMENTS Landscape Visual Impact Assessment 16.10 2018;

Tree Canopy Projection Plan 23.10.2018.
CASE OFFICER Ms Astrid Lynn

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This application is referred to Planning Control Committee (PCC) because the 

Southern Area Planning Committee (SAPC) was minded to refuse planning 
permission for reasons that the Head of Planning and Building advised could 
not be substantiated. In all cases a decision would result in a risk of costs 
being awarded against the Council at appeal.

1.2 A copy of the Officer’s report to the 9 October 2018 SAPC and its associated 
update paper are attached as Appendix A and Appendix B respectively.

2.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
2.1 Members of SAPC resolved to refuse planning permission contrary to the 

Officer recommendation. Members considered that the proposed development 
would represent an unacceptable size; loss of woodland subject to a TPO; 
would reduce distinctive village features that would be unacceptable and 
detrimental to the character and setting of the Conservation Area; and would 
result in the irresistible urge to fell trees to protect future living conditions, 
adversely affecting the character and appearance of the area.

2.2 Reason for refusal 1: Impact on the character and appearance of the 
area.
The reason for refusal by the SAPC referenced conflict with Policy E1 which 
requires that development “should integrate, respect and compliment the 
character of the area in which the development is located in terms of layout, 
appearance, scale, materials and building styles”, and:
(d) that developments “makes efficient use of the land whilst respecting the 
character of the surrounding area and neighbouring uses”. 
Policy E2 requires that development “does not have a detrimental impact on 
the appearance of the immediate area and the landscape character of the area 
within which it is located.”

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 10

ITEM 7



2.3 Members of SAPC referenced the bulk of the dwelling failing to reflect the 
character and appearance of the area in terms of policies E1 and E2. The 
discussions about harm centred on views of the site from the main village 
street – this public vantage point also forms part of the route of the Clarendon 
Way.

2.4 As is described in the officer’s recommendation, the area is characterised by 
dwellings of a similar scale and ridge height. The proposal represents a 
detached dwelling comparable to those in the vicinity, perpendicular to the 
road and contained within existing woodland and additional planting. The 
design is considered to be one that gives the appearance of evolving over 
time, breaking up the overall massing of the building, providing for the long 
term maintenance of the plot in woodland management. Proposed materials of 
clay tiles and brick are considered appropriate local materials sympathetic to 
the settlement.

2.5 The discussion at SAPC focussed on the impact the development would have 
from the Village Street and the related impact on the character and 
appearance of the area. Officer’s advice is that the additional proposed 
hedgerow planting would limit this impact to the driveway only, in character 
with other dwellings of the village within the settlement and Conservation Area. 
Additional supporting information submitted on 16 October 2018 following the 
SAPC meeting, the LVIA clarifies this point indicating that the proposed 
dwelling with associated additional planting, would only be visible from the 
driveway, with the additional benefit of new managed planting to enhance 
existing hedgerow and tree cover on site over the next 20 years. 

2.6 The 0.74acre site is considered a spacious setting for a single detached 
dwelling within a settlement, respecting the character of the surrounding area 
and neighbouring uses. The development for one dwelling is therefore 
considered compliant with policies E1 and E2 and guidance contained within 
the NPPF.

2.7 Reason for refusal 2: Loss of woodland adversely affecting the character 
of the area.
 Members of SAPC raised concerns that the development would result in 
woodland subject to a Tree Preservation Order, being directly lost and 
therefore adversely affecting the character and appearance of the area.

2.8 As described in the officer’s report, the Tree Preservation Order is not affected 
by this development, and would remain in place. The site provides a green 
wooded area visible from some distance on the Clarendon Way and from the 
Sheepbridge. Its presence therefore offers a significant landscape contribution 
to the setting and appearance of the settlement from both long distance and 
short distance views.  

2.9 Members of SAPC were advised that the development proposal included an 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan that concluded that 
the proposed changes will affect trees, but that subject to appropriate 
protection, the development will have no adverse impact on the contribution 
the woodland makes to the character and appearance of the wider area. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 11



Indeed, with the proposed planting and a 20 year management scheme 
proposed (secure via condition) the scheme would result in an enhancement to 
the area on the medium to long term. in accordance with policy E2. 

2.10 The submission is now additionally supported by a document depicting the 
existing and potential ‘Tree Canopy Spread‘ with and without the development. 
The TVBC Tree Officer notes that this document explains that although the site 
is protected by a Tree Preservation Order, the Local Planning Authority has 
little control over the future management of the Copse without this 
development. This explains that apparent failure of the woodland as depicted 
in the Canopy spread plan that has been produced since SAPC by the 
applicant. The plan also identifies that Ash-die back will also contribute to the 
loss f woodland in the foreseeable future. In addition, this supporting document 
clarifies that the proposed development enables the site to increase and 
improve trees on site, however, without it, there is no power to enforce 
replacement of trees lost naturally, leaving trees to collapse, and scrub, laurel 
and brambles to inhabit the woodland floor, which in turn would restrict the 
natural regeneration of new trees.

2.11 The officer notes that without this development, the TPO woodland would 
degenerate within 20 years, without controls, to the detriment of the character 
of the area, and this position is considered to weigh significantly in favour of 
the development. The proposal, it is considered provides an opportunity to 
reflect the strong feeling locally of the visual value of woodland on this site. 

2.12 Reason for refusal 3: Impact on the Conservation Area
Members expressed their concern that the development would remove 
roadside hedgerow which provides characteristic roadside boundary treatment, 
which is considered characteristic of the character and setting of the 
Conservation Area. They felt that the inclusion of a new dwelling with driveway 
accessed from the Village Street, would be detrimental to the character and 
setting of the Conservation Area. 

2.13 The Officer’s report notes that the proposal would reinstate the boundary 
hedgerow, and would also retain the southern part of the site as managed 
woodland. The SAPC report notes that the Tree, Landscape and Conservation 
and Design Officer’s raise no objection to the proposal. The SAPC report 
clarifies that the on-site mature trees, planned retention and supplemental 
planting would in combination provide no views through the site to the River 
Test and the Sheepbridge. Indeed the SAPC report states that the 
development would result in a neutral impact on the setting and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. 

2.14 In reaching their decision at SAPC, Councillors did clarify further how the new 
dwelling and driveway would be detrimental to the character and setting of the 
Conservation Area, in contradiction to the advice provided in the Officer’s 
report. Consequently members were advised that this refusal reason would 
therefore carry a risk that costs could be awarded against the Council in any 
subsequent appeal

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 12



2.15 Reason for refusal 4: Threat to fell trees subject to TPO’s.
Members expressed their concern that the development would as a 
consequence of the proximity of the dwelling and it’s private amenity space to 
woodland, result in the irresistible urge to fell trees to protect future living 
conditions. The threat to fell would result in the loss of trees and the woodland 
area that makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the 
area. 

2.16 The Officer’s report to SAPC explains that 14 trees are shown for removal, 
including Grade B and C, however, 16 trees are shown for planting. all 
standard trees, providing immediate tree cover. In addition, the Tree Officer 
states no objection to the proposal. 

2.17 To assist members in understanding the all officer advice in this respect, an 
LVIA and a Tree Canopy Report are now submitted, in support of the 
development. These are considered to clarify that the Copse would not be 
detrimentally impacted by the development and, further, that the development 
enables the long term management and retention of the TPO woodland, which 
cannot be otherwise ensured. 

2.18 In reaching this resolution at SAPC, Councillors did not explicitly set out their 
concerns. In addition Officers are of the opinion that the scheme is acceptable 
in this respect

2.19 Other matters
Much of the SAPC discussions focussed on the differences between the 
previously refused scheme and that now proposed. Officers provided plans in 
the agenda papers of both the layout and elevations of both schemes, and 
these remain available in Appendix A. 

2.20 Officers advised SAPC that the scheme had significantly changed in the 
intervening period with regard to the size, design and massing of the proposed 
dwelling, clarification over any retained trees, improvements to the boundary 
hedgerows (new) and the provision of significant amounts (and size) of new 
replacement tree planting that is now included. In addition to this the current 
scheme. As mentioned elsewhere in this report, the applicant has also 
committed to a 20 year management and maintenance scheme for the 
woodland that would remain post-construction. It is considered that these 
changes represent significant alterations to the previously refused scheme that 
the scheme is now acceptable. 

3.0 CONCLUSIONS
3.1 It remains the consideration of the Head of Planning and Building that the 

proposal, subject to the required conditions would have no significant adverse 
impact on the character and appearance of the area when viewed from the 
village Street or the Clarendon Way or from the Sheepbridge, neither would it 
significantly or unacceptably impact upon the woodland subject to a woodland 
TPO, the Conservation Area or the landscape. There is significant scope to 
retain and enhance the woodland presence on the site post-construction of the 
new dwelling and thereby preserve the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. It is also material to consider the effect of the ‘do nothing’ 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 13



approach and how such an approach might have on future tree cover at the 
site. The applicant has provided further information to demonstrate how the 
scheme would assist in delivering the community aspirations for a woodland to 
make a positive contribution to the street scene, and setting of Houghton. 

4.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
TO PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 
REFUSE for the reasons: 
1. The proposed bulk of the dwelling is not acceptable in that its size 

would fail to reflect the character and appearance of the area and 
therefore not accord with Policies E1 and E2 of the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)

2. The proposed dwelling will result in the loss of woodland which is 
the subject of a Tree Preservation Order. The loss of the woodland 
would adversely affect the character and appearance of the area, 
contrary to Policies E1 and E2 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan (2016).

3. The Bossington and Houghton Conservation Area is characterised 
by linking roadside hedgerows, such as that providing the roadside 
boundary for this application site, by this woodland, subject of a 
Woodland Preservation Order and by a number of roadside Listed 
Buildings, which retain local design pre-eminence in the street 
scene. The reduction of these distinctive village features arising 
from this proposed development is considered unacceptable and 
detrimental to the character and setting of the Conservation Area, a 
heritage asset and contrary to Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan (2016) policies COM2 and E9.

4. The proposal would, as a consequence of the proximity of the 
dwelling and it’s private amenity space to woodland, result in the 
irresistible urge to fell trees to protect future living conditions. The 
threat to fell would result in the loss of trees and the woodland area 
that makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance 
of the area. The proposal is contrary to Policy E2 of the Test valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016).

5.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND BUILDING
PERMISSION subject to:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission.
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers:  16/291/02 Rev. G; 16/291/03 Rev. H; 17347-BT7. 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 14



3. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.

4. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until Woodland Management Plan, 
and a schedule of implementation and maintenance for a minimum 
period of 20 years has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details 
of the arrangements for the phasing of the implementation and 
ongoing maintenance during that period in accordance with 
appropriate British Standards or other recognised codes of 
practise. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved schedule.
Reason:  To ensure the provision, retention and maintenance to a 
suitable standard of approved woodland to maintain and enhance 
the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the 
development in the interest of visual amenity and to contribute to 
the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E2.

5. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies E1 and E9.

6. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water 
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016.

7. At least the first 6 metres of the access track measured from the 
nearside edge of carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be 
surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access 
commencing and retained as such at all times.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1

8. Any gates shall be set back at least 6 metres from the edge of the 
carriageway of the adjoining highway and the access shall be 
splayed at an angle of 45 degrees from this point to the edge of the 
highway.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 15



Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1

9. Prior to the commencement of the use or first occupation of the 
building hereby permitted, the car parking space(s), turning and 
manoeuvring area shall be constructed, surfaced and laid out in 
accordance with the approved plans. The area of land so provided 
shall be maintained at all times for this purpose.
Reason:  To ensure sufficient off-street parking has been provided 
and in the interest of highways safety in accordance with the Test 
Valley Revised Local Plan 2016 Policies T1 and T2.

10. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout 
for the parking and manoeuvring on site of contractor's and 
delivery vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement 
of development and retained for the duration of the construction 
period.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety and in the interest of 
protecting Trees subject to a Woodland Preservation Order in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies T1 and E2.

11. Prior to the commencement of development the visibility splays, 
reference Plan 16/291/03 Rev. H shall be provided.  Nothing within 
the approved visibility splays shall exceed 1 metre above the level 
of the adjacent carriageway (including the land level and any walls, 
fences and vegetation).  Notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) these 
visibility splays shall be maintained in accordance with the above 
details at all times.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1

12. Development shall proceed in accordance with the measures set 
out in section 6.1 'Mitigation' of the Ecological Assessment- Interim 
Report Land at Meadow View, Houghton' (Aluco Ecology, June 
2018). 
Reason:  To avoid impacts to protected and notable species and to 
conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy E5 of 
the Test Valley Revised Local Plan DPD.

13. All works to existing trees, together with the provision of new tree 
planting, and new boundary hedging (including the new hedge 
along the road frontage of the dwelling) shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details contained in Drw.No.17347-BT7 (Barrell 
Tree Consulting) prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby 
permitted. 
Reason:  To ensure that only appropriate works to the trees 
identified on this plan are undertaken, and that suitable planting 
takes place on-site in a timely manner, to ensure an appropriate tree 
cover remains following construction of the new dwelling, to 
protect the character and appearance of the Conservation Area in 
accordance with Policy E9 of the Test Valley Borough revised Local 
plan (2016).

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 16



14. Prior to development taking place tree protective fencing shall be 
erected in accordance with the details contained in Drw.No.17347-
BT7 (Barrell Tree Consulting), the "Arboricultural Assessment and 
Method Statement" (Ref: 17347-AA6-PB), and the report "Manual for 
Managing Trees on development sites" (Barrell Tree Consulting). 
The tree protective measures shall be retained on site for the full 
duration of the construction activity. 
Reason:  To ensure that suitable tree protection has been erected 
prior to work being undertaken on site to minimise the chance of 
accidental damage to trees, and that appropriate tree cover remains 
following construction of the new dwelling, to protect the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area in accordance with Policy 
E9 of the Test Valley Borough revised Local plan (2016).

15. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no garages 
or additional outbuildings shall be erected other than those 
expressly authorised by this permission.
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E2.

Notes to applicant:
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

2. Birds' nests, when occupied or being built, and the widespread 
species of reptile receive legal protection under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).  It is highly advisable to 
undertake clearance of potential bird nesting habitat (such as 
hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) outside the bird 
nesting season, which is generally seen as extending from March to 
the end of August, although may extend longer depending on local 
conditions. If there is absolutely no alternative to doing the work in 
during this period then a thorough, careful and quiet examination of 
the affected area must be carried out before clearance starts.  If 
occupied nests are present then work must stop in that area, a 
suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance 
can only recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its 
own accord. Reptile habitat such as compost heaps should be 
carefully cleared by hand during warmer months as if hibernating 
reptiles are disturbed they will die. Any reptiles revealed should be 
moved to adjacent retained rougher / boundary habitat or allowed to 
move off of their own accord.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 17



3. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at 
any point during this development. Should this occur, further 
advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist.

4. The various trees standing within this site are all protected by virtue 
of standing within the Houghton Conservation Area and also by 
Tree Preservation Order (TPO.TVBC.1124) Damage to any of the 
trees not identified for removal on the approved plans is an offence. 
Failure to comply in full with Barrell Tree Consultancy 
Arboricultural Assessment and Method Statement  17347-AA2-PB is 
likely to result in damage to the trees. Damage to the trees may lead 
to the prosecution of those undertaking the work and also of those 
instructing, causing or permitting the works.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 18



APPENDIX A

Officer Report to Southern Area Planning Committee on 9 October 2018

APPLICATION NO. 18/01953/FULLS
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH
REGISTERED 24.07.2018
APPLICANT Mr and Mrs L. Ashford
SITE Land adjacent to Meadow View, Houghton, 

Stockbridge, SO20 6LT, HOUGHTON 
PROPOSAL Erection of a detached dwelling
AMENDMENTS Shade and sunlight study; Ecology Survey. 

02/08/2018.
Exterior materials: Brick. 24/08/2018.
Elevations amended 28.08.2018.

CASE OFFICER Ms Astrid Lynn 

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee at the 

request of a Member for the reason: 

“due to the public perception that it is against the security of the copse on 
which a preservation order (or equivalent) was served”.

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The application is made in full on a 0.74 acre site located within the settlement 

of Houghton, within the Conservation Area. The site is south of Houghton 
Road, between the dwellings known as Mayfield House and Dianthus. Meadow 
View and South End Cottages are opposite the site, to the north of Houghton 
Road. Garden and pasture land outside the settlement lies, to the south east of 
the site. Beyond this is the River Test, a Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI). The route of the Clarendon Way, a Public Right of Way, passes the 
site to the north, along Village Road.

2.2 The site is the subject of a Woodland Tree Preservation Order, and contains 
trees and bushes. A single range of derelict pigsties and outbuildings are sited 
within this undergrowth, in the north of the site, with gable end to the road side, 
and a further small former building is indicated in the central area of the site.

3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 The proposal is to construct a single detached dwelling. Indicative details for a 

package treatment plant, new access and entrance gates are included in the 
submission. The proposed dwelling is located in the northern end of the 
application site, in a main and smaller section connected by a glass link. The 
proposed dwelling would therefore have a number of roof levels and gables, 
and two chimneys. The proposed roofing material is handmade clay tiles. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 19



Exterior walls would be in hand made brick with a plinth in blue engineering 
bricks. The glazed link would also be erected on a plinth of blue engineering 
bricks.

3.2 The ground floor would comprise living rooms across the entire width of the 
main house. The first floor would comprise four en-suite bedrooms, and a 
dressing room for the master bedroom.

3.3 Plans depict a vehicular access opposite Meadow View, with entrance gates 
set back 6m from the road side. An on-site turning head and three parking 
spaces are proposed to the north of the proposed dwelling. 

3.4 The roofline and footprint is varied, considered to represent a building which 
has grown organically over time. 

3.5 Details for a Klargester sewage treatment tank are submitted, indicating their 
location in the driveway to the north of the proposed dwelling, 5m from the 
boundary with the garden to Mayfield. 

4.0 HISTORY
4.1 17/02017/FULLS Demolition of existing buildings on site and construction of 

detached dwelling to include package treatment plant, new access and 
entrance gates. Refused 02.11.2017.

1. The proposed single dwelling is a bulky single mass, considered 
intrusive and uncharacteristic, not well integrated into the area 
character, or the site which is subject to a Woodland Tree Preservation 
Order, detrimental to this woodland and the surrounding Conservation 
Area. The proposed dwelling house is considered bulky and 
unacceptably intrusive contrary to Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan policies COM2 and E1.

2. The site provides a green wooded area; subject to Woodland Tree 
Preservation Order, with mature trees visible from the Clarendon Way 
and from the Sheepsbridge, which crosses the River Test to the north of 
the site. It provides a verdant hedgerow alongside the Village street, 
characteristic of the Conservation area. The loss of a large part of this 
woodland and road side hedgerow is considered detrimental to the 
landscape character of the immediate area, contrary to Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan policies COM2 and E2.

3. Inadequate survey and mitigation information has been submitted in 
order for the local planning authority to conclude that the proposed 
development would not have an adverse impact on protected species. 
The proposed development is therefore considered contrary to policies 
COM2 and E5 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 20



4. The Bossington and Houghton Conservation Area is characterised by 
linking roadside hedgerows, such as that providing the roadside 
boundary for this application site, by this woodland, subject of a 
Woodland Preservation Order and by a number of roadside Listed 
Buildings, which retain local design pre-eminence in the street scene. 
The reduction of these distinctive village features arising from this 
proposed development is considered unacceptable and detrimental to 
the character and setting of the Conservation Area, a heritage asset and 
contrary to Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) policies 
COM2 and E9.

5. Inadequate survey and mitigation information has been submitted in 
order for the local planning authority to conclude that the proposed 
development would not have an adverse impact on the amenity of future 
occupants of the proposed development, arising from potential 
overshadowing from the surrounding woodland. The proposed 
development is therefore considered contrary to policies COM2 and 
LHW4 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016).

6. The eastward gable end windows for the development subject to this 
application are within 5m of the rear garden for Mayfield. Loss of privacy 
arising from this overlooking is considered detrimental to the amenity of 
Mayfield and its occupants, and contrary to Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan (2016) policies COM2 and LHW4.

Plans associated with this refused application are included in the agenda 
paper as Appendix A.

4.2 17/01485/TREES Proposal works to trees as per schedule received. Objection. 
Woodland TPO. 10.10.2017.

4.3 17/02242/TPOS Carry out various tree works as described in survey schedule 
submitted with application. Part Consent, part refusal. 17.10.2017.

4.4 TPO.TVBC.1124 Trees within the boundaries of the woodland area opposite 
Meadow View and adjacent to Mayfield House, Houghton. 12.10.2017.

5.0 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Policy Officer– No objection. 

5.2 Landscape Officer – No objection subject to conditions concerning planting 
details, including implementation and subsequent management, and delivering 
on the front boundary hedge.

5.3 Conservation and Design Officer – No objection subject to conditions.

5.4 Tree Officer – No objections subject to conditions.

5.5 HCC Ecologist – No objection subject to a condition and notes.

5.6 Highways Engineer – No objection subject to conditions.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 21



6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 24.08.2018
6.1 Houghton Parish Council – Objection (Summarised):

 No housing need for large dwellings. Test Valley has sufficient housing 
Land Supply. (HLS);

 Village Design Statement and Neighbourhood Plan. (Not yet published).
 Seeks to protect the last green spaces in the village.
 Houghton and Bossington Conservation Document. 
 The copse contains 'important trees and groups of trees'. It 

characterises the village as having distinctive features of interlinking 
hedgerows and listed buildings close by. The reduction of this distinctive 
village feature is unacceptable and detrimental to the character and 
setting of the Conservation Area, contrary to policies COM2 and E9.

 Woodland Preservation Order. This application would involve cutting 
down valuable trees, losing habitat for the village rookery and impacting 
on the biodiversity of the wood, thus contravening policy COM2 and E5.

 This development is on the site of the last woodland copse in the 
village.

 Landscape impact. The development would be visible from Sheepbridge 
and also lies adjacent to the Clarendon Way. Both are visited regularly 
by tourists and locals, who appreciate the area and the birdlife and 
wildlife. 

 Development. There have already been significant developments 
approved by TVBC very close to the site. The area will have changed 
beyond recognition if the woodland were to be developed with the 
further loss of green and wildlife abundant spaces.

 Planning History. The Parish Council would like to draw attention to the 
notice of refusal for 17/02017/FULLS. The reasons for refusal are still 
applicable to this application. 

 Houghton Parish Council objects to this proposal. It contravenes 6 
policies of the Revised Local Plan.

6.2 Forty letters of objection have been received from occupants of properties in 
the village. These objections include: 

6.3 Same refusal reasons as the 2017 refused case
The reasons for refusal last year are still overwhelmingly relevant  and the 
application should be refused again;

6.4 Out of character with landscape of the village
 This development would have a negative impact on the character  of 

this area of the village;
 A large dwelling in an acknowledged woodland;
 It will be totally out of sympathy with the character of the village;
 The Test Valley generally is a highly manicured area – any small pieces 

of land which are relatively unspoilt (some would say unkempt) are to 
be highly valued and protected;

 Villagers do not wish to be living in a suburban style community where 
all the green spaces and woodland have been built over loss of 
characteristic roadside hedgerow;

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 22



6.5 Biodiversity impact
 Local residents would like to see the site remain a small wooded area;
 It would be a disaster if the wooded copse and wildlife were destroyed 

for yet another un needed large property;
 It is unacceptable for a building to be constructed on a green wooded 

area which contributes an important habitat for local wildlife  and a key 
feature of the conservation area; 

 A significant number of trees and other natural environment has been 
lost to other building works or still planned for this side of Houghton. 
This copse must be maintained to preserve the habitat and retain some 
semblance of the rural character of this part of the village; 

 The area is so close to the river and it will have its own biological 
microcosm that should be protected;

 Would seriously affect the bio diversity of the wood which is presently 
home to the village rookery, has owls and bats in it as well as slow 
worms, all protected species:

 Loss of valuable green lung & habitat; loss of habitat for protected 
species; 

 Loss of a significant and rare copse; 
 Concerns expressed for the wellbeing of the Rookery and for bats in 

particular as well as owls and other protected species;
 How can you say that this application will protect or add to, bio-diversity 

and heritage?
 

6.6 Loss of defining characteristic of green spaces between properties
 Loss of a green space and interlinking hedgerow between listed 

buildings; 
 Loss of a valuable green lung within the village;

6.7 Impact on views from PROW 
 Impacts on views from the Clarendon Way and Sheepsbridge, which 

are Public Rights of Way;

6.8 No housing need 
 For a further luxury home in the village; 
 Need for small affordable dwellings; 
 TVBC has publicly states that it has sufficient land for housebuilding for 

the next 15 years
 There may be good reasons for social or affordable housing, but the 

current proposal appears to contribute absolutely nothing to the 
wellbeing of the village.

6.9 Over development 
 There is enough development in this end of the village;
 The village has had 28 new houses permitted in the last 3 years, half 

very close to the site; 
 The large proposed dwelling is out of context;
  There are 3 derelict dwellings opposite the site – evidencing no need 

for this property’;
 In recent years the village has had its fair share of large properties 

being built and the rural village, country soul of Houghton is 
disappearing. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 23



 The village has seen an approximate 18 -20% increase in houses in the 
past 5 years which has massively diminished the rural nature of the 
village;

 Uncharacteristic and not well integrated design.

6.10 Highways impact
 Traffic generation, parking and safety.

6.11 Lack of amenities for new development
 Lack of light and sunlight - Little natural light arising from building a 

dwelling within a woodland, with related threat to fell trees subject to 
TPOs;

 The proposed property, whilst slightly smaller than the previous 
proposal, would still require the felling of a significant number of mature 
trees, and would inevitably lead to a gradual clearance of the whole site; 

 The village lacks services for more development – doctors; public 
transport, internet, electricity outages every winter.

6.12 Drainage matters
Normal site conditions are boggy and it will probably be necessary to pile drive 
the plot to construct footings, with related impacts on the root systems of trees.

6.13 Loss of Woodland subject to a Woodland TPO 
 Would like someone to buy this and keep it maintained as a much 

needed wooded area this end of the village;
 Threat to fell arising from development in close proximity to mature 

trees; 
 Miss Beales Copse was never residential, it has disused Pigsties on site 

and has been a woodland for 30 years; 
 Loss of a unique small woodland;. 
 This particular instance will destroy the last piece of woodland in the 

village;
 It would involve cutting down a large amount of trees in the middle of 

the wood and would change the appearance of the wood and the 
conservation area forever contrary to policies COM2 and E1;

 It would be contrary to the Woodland Preservation Order to cut down 
mature trees that are visible from the Clarendon Way and Sheepbridge, 
changing the street scene and conservation area with changes to trees 
and hedges along the road;

 Little natural light arising from building a dwelling within a woodland, 
with related threat to fell trees subject to TPOs;

 The proposed property, whilst slightly smaller than the previous 
proposal, would still require the felling of a significant number of mature 
trees, and would inevitably lead to a gradual clearance of the whole site;

6.14 Design and the Village Design Statement (lodged with the TVBC)
 States that the land is a significant and rare copse which strongly 

reinforces the rural character of the village road;
 Building on this land would destroy beyond recognition the last 

woodland copse in the village.
 The reference to 19-22 south End Cottages, refers to cottages built in 

1875 as an interpretation of the Kentish vernacular. Does copying this 
produce a Hampshire style? 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 24



6.15 Overlooking and loss of privacy
The positioning of the property means that the front of the house looks directly 
onto the front of our property with three bedroom windows facing directly into 
each other, and will adversely affect privacy contrary to policies COM2 and 
LHW4.
 

6.16 Impact on this part of the Conservation Area
 This part of the Conservation Area needs to retain this particular 

wooded area of land which has always had a lot of coppiced wood and 
large trees; 

 the proposed building is out of character with the area;

6.17 Heritage impact - adverse Conservation Area impacts
The site was owned and used by its original owners of Meadow View as a 
large vegetable plot, with a pig and pig sty, chicken and a few sheep. There 
was a long wooded barn alongside the road associated with the livestock. 

7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 2018(NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)( TVBRLP)
SD1 –  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
COM2 –  Settlement hierarchy
COM7 –  Affordable Housing
E1 –  High quality development in the Borough
E2 –  Protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of the  Borough
E5 –  Biodiversity
E7 –  Water management
E9 –  Heritage
LHW4 –  Amenity
T1 –  Managing movement
T2 –  Parking standards

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Bossington and Houghton Conservation Area 1990.   

7.4 Other 
Draft Houghton Neighbourhood Plan (Area designation 13.06. 2017).

8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are:

• The principle of development
• Heritage impacts -Conservation Area; Listed Buildings; Archaeology
• Landscape character impact
• Biodiversity Impact
• Design
• Amenity impact
• Highways Impact: Village Road and Clarendon Way
• Drainage impact

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 25



8.2 The principle of development
The development is located within the settlement boundary of Houghton as set 
out in the Revised Borough Local Plan 2016. (TVBRLP). Policy COM2 of the 
TVBRLP states that the principle of development will be permitted provided 
that it is appropriate to other material planning considerations. Therefore in 
principle, the development proposal is acceptable. It is not necessary for the 
applicant to demonstrate, for the purpose of complying with Policy COM02 in 
this instance that there is a need for the dwelling (“luxury” or “affordable”). 
Other material considerations are now addressed.

8.3 Heritage impacts 
Heritage impacts include impacts on the Houghton and Bossington 
Conservation Area, adjacent listed buildings and on archaeology. Heritage 
matters are addressed within TVBRLP policy E9: Heritage, which requires 
development proposals affecting heritage assets to make positive contributions 
to sustaining or enhancing the significance of the heritage asset, and requires 
that development proposals are informed through an assessment 
proportionate to its significance.

8.4 Houghton and Bossington Conservation Area is characterised by key features, 
including:
• A dispersed linear settlement with hedgerows linking elements between    
           groups of dwellings.
• Important open areas to the east adjacent the River Test.
• Characteristic local estate cottages.
• Views eastwards across the valley of the River Test and from footpaths 
           on the western village edge.

8.5 The key feature characteristic of the Conservation Area on this site is the 
hedgerow along the road frontage, providing a key linkage for this part of the 
dispersed linear settlement between Mayfield with Dianthus on the east of the 
Village Road and dwellings further south. The Woodland is also the remaining 
woodland in the village, and considered focal within the Conservation Area. 
The views towards this site are predominantly from the Village Street, 
Clarendon Way and the Sheepsbridge. It is not currently possible to view the 
river from within the site, due to its well vegetated Woodland nature.

8.6 The application is submitted with a current Heritage and Townscape 
Statement, (RMA Heritage, July 2018). This concludes that though recently 
designated as woodland by the Council, historic research reveals th at the site 
was until relatively recently managed and developed at its northern end, with 
the site becoming overgrown in recent years. This report suggests that the 
proposed development would reinforce the historic linear settlement pattern of 
the village, and will allow the site to retain its treed character. 

8.7 The proposal provides a reinstated boundary hedgerow and retains all the 
southern part of the woodland. The Council’s Conservation and Design Officer, 
the Landscape Officer, and the Tree Officer raise no objection to the proposal. 
Notably, due to the on-site mature trees, and planned retention, and 
supplemental planting, the development would not provide new views through 
the site to the River Test or Sheepsbridge. Conversely the public appreciation 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 26



of built development on the site when viewed from the Clarendon Way as one 
approaches and leaves the Sheepsbridge will also be minimised. The 
reduction in built form on the site (compared to the refused scheme) and the 
resultant dwelling appearing in the context of similarly scaled existing dwellings 
in this vista would, it is considered result in a more sympathetic form of 
development that would complement the character and appearance of the 
area.

8.8 Proposed development 
18/01953/FULLS

Refused development 
17/002017/FULLS

11m maximum width 13m maximum width
24m length 24m length
No cellar A cellar 10.5m X 9m
Ridge height varies 7.3m, 7.8m & 8m Ridge height 8.2m
Single storey utility 3m from southern 
boundary

Two storey dwelling 3m from 
southern boundary

Sewage treatment plant to the north 
east of the proposed dwelling

Sewage treatment plant to the south 
of the proposed dwelling

Handmade brick exterior elevations Through render exterior walls
Blue engineering brick plinth Natural coloured sandstone plinth

The table above clarifies the differences between the two applications on site. 
The reinstatement of the roadside hedgerow, the tree management proposal 
and the tree planting discussed in depth further below, are also considered an 
enhancement of the site’s rural and wooded setting. In combination, these 
aspects are considered to result in a neutral impact on the setting of the 
Conservation Area, thereby preserving the character and appearance of the 
area. The development is considered acceptable and in accord with TVBRLP 
policy E9. 

8.9 Listed Buildings 
The application site is adjacent to a number of listed dwellings. These include 
Lavender Cottage, Rowans, Thatch Cottage to the south, and Houghton Farm 
House slightly further north, all listed Grade II and adjacent to the Village 
Road. Houghton Farm House is a significant former farmhouse, containing the 
former Village Reading Room, and is considered to have a street presence, 
with its large focal chimneys and concrete render exterior. The other adjacent 
listed buildings are well proportioned two storey dwellings, with low eaves, 
characteristic of estate dwellings of the village.

8.10 These properties have some prominence in the street scene, they are all 
visible from the Village Street, and are all characteristic of the Estate Cottages 
of the Conservation Area. It is considered important that they retain their 
prominence in this Conservation Area.  The proposal is for a two storey 
dwelling house adjacent the Village Street. It will, by virtue of the existing, 
proposed planting, and the scale, massing and relative detailing that the 
proposal includes, will have limited visibility in the public domain. 
Consequently, the views to and from these Listed building from the 
development would, it is considered, be limited such that the setting and 
character of these buildings will be preserved, in accordance with policy E9 of 
the TVBRLP.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 27



8.11 Archaeology
The development is located within the historic core of the village, however, the 
scale is considered limited in archaeological terms, and raises no 
archaeological issues.

8.12 Landscape character impact/Impact on Trees
Landscape character is addressed within TVBRLP policy E2: Protect, conserve 
and enhance the landscape character of the Borough. This requires 
development proposals to protect, conserve and enhance landscape 
character. An assessment of the related impact arises from the existing 
character, and how or if, this character is protected, conserved or enhanced.

8.13 The character of the site arises from its woodland nature and road side 
hedgerow which are seen in the context of the surrounding Conservation Area, 
with views of the site immediately adjacent from the Village Street, and more 
distantly, from the Clarendon Way and the Sheepsbridge. The site provides a 
green wooded area, designated with a Woodland Preservation Order. Mature 
trees on the site are visible from some distance on the Clarendon Way and 
from the Sheepsbridge, crossing the River Test to the north of the site, and 
from the road in front. The site is therefore considered of some landscape 
significance.

8.14 The application is supported with a Landscape and Visual appraisal Report, 
(WH Landscape Consultancy Ltd July 2018), which concludes that the 
proposed development will have no adverse effects on the key characteristics 
or descriptions of the site and surrounding landscape; such that the type of 
development proposed does not represent a key issues facing any of the 
relevant character types or areas. Mitigation measures proposed would 
integrate the proposed development into the landscape, and would also 
provide landscape enhancements to the sites landscape structure, in particular 
the boundary hedgerows and remaining woodland. 

8.15 The submitted Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact Assessment and an 
Arboricultural Method Statement, dated 1st September 2017, (Barrell July 
2018), identify that the trees subject to removal are either of low or moderate 
category classification, and none form significant skyline features. The report 
concludes that although the proposed changes will affect trees, subject to 
appropriate protective measures, the development will have no adverse impact 
on the contribution of trees to the character in the wider setting. The Tree 
Officer has discussed this application at length and raises no objection.

8.16 The Tree Survey and Protection Plan submitted, provides an idea of the extent 
of tree work proposed. Thinning of the woodland is proposed, providing some 
woodland management. The trees on site have been graded A-C according to 
the British Standard 5837. This classification provides an indication of the 
quality of the trees in Arboricultural terms where Grade A represents “High 
Quality”, Grade B “Moderate quality” and Grade C “Low quality”. A number of 
both grade B (3no) and grade C (14no.) trees are shown for removal and a 
number of Grade B (3no.) and Grade C (3no.) shown for pruning. The report 
also indicates that it is the intention to provide a total of 16no. New heavy 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 28



standard trees. The Council’s tree officer raises no objection to the way in 
which the trees have been classified, the extent of the tree work/removal or of 
the nature of the proposed planting to accompany the proposed development. 
It is considered that the proposed planting plan and the works proposed to the 
existing trees on site will enable the development to be accommodated on this 
site without significant detriment to the character and appearance of the area. 
Indeed the proposed planting will, once properly managed, help in continuing 
to contribute to a woodland setting to the village.  The proposal is therefore 
considered in accord with the appearance of the immediate area and the 
landscape character of the area within which it is located, and in accord with 
TVBRLP policy E2.

8.17 Biodiversity Impact
Biodiversity impacts are addressed within TVBRLP policy E5: Biodiversity, 
which requires development proposals to conserve and where possible, 
restore and or enhance biodiversity.

8.18 The submitted report, (Aluco, July 2018), provides all ecological mitigation 
requirements, and matters arising can be conditioned. The application is 
therefore in accord with TVBRLP policy E5.

8.19 Design impact
Design is assessed within TVBRLP policy E1: High quality development in the 
Borough. This requires development to be of a high quality in terms of design 
and local distinctiveness, including integrating, respecting and complementing 
local area character. 

8.20 Locally distinctive aspects of design include estate cottages, with relatively low 
eaves, varied rooflines and low ridgelines.

8.21 The proposed single dwelling appears to have a ridge height similar to those of 
adjacent properties, particularly Meadow View, Maybury and Southend 
Cottages. This can be ensured by the application of a levels condition in the 
recommendation. The proposed development now includes elevational 
treatment and detailing (see paragraph 8.8), that is considered sympathetic to 
the settlement. 

8.22 The Village Design Statement has not been adopted, therefore the points 
raised by third parties in this respect, cannot be substantiated. The dwelling 
would appear as one that has evolved over a period of time. The main part of 
the dwelling runs perpendicular to the road, with a ‘side extension’ running 
parallel to it. This provides an opportunity to break the overall massing of the 
building up, compared to the previously refused scheme and utilising varied 
rooflines ensures the building’s impact on its surroundings is comparable to 
those in the vicinity. As previously discussed, when the dwelling is seen in the 
context that some existing vegetation is maintained, that additional planting is 
proposed, and that a condition is added to ensure the long term maintenance 
of the plot in woodland management. The overall design of the dwelling is 
therefore considered well integrated into the Conservation Area character, 
carefully adding a well concealed but spacious dwelling within the woodland 
setting, and considered in accord with TVBRLP policy E1.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 29



8.23 Amenity impact
Amenity impact is assessed within TVBRLP policy LHW4: Amenity, which 
assesses impact on light, sunlight, privacy and related matters. There are two 
elements to the consideration of these issues. Firstly, the amenity of future 
residents of the development and secondly, the impact of the proposal on the 
amenity of existing neighbouring properties. 

8.24 Light and sunlight
The proposal indicates the retention of trees around the dwelling. The 
application is also accompanied by a Daylight and Sunlight Study, (Right of 
Light Consulting, July 2018). This report, partly submitted to address concerns 
under the previously refused planning application and the degree to which light 
might affect to future occupants of the property, indicates that adequate 
daylight and sunlight is achieved with this development proposal, in 
accordance with BRE standards. No detrimental associated loss of light or 
sunlight derives from the proposal for the neighbouring property, due to the 
location of the development , at this distance from Mayfield It is therefore 
considered that the proposal accords with TVBRLP policy LHW4: Amenity in 
terms of light and sunlight. 

8.25 Visual impact of the Sewage treatment plant
The sewage treatment plant location would be approximately 5m from the 
garden to Mayfield. The siting of the sewage treatment plant would require 
some ground clearance and access arrangements, however, the resulting 
slightly raised disc at ground level within the car park and turning area, is not 
considered to result in an adverse impact to the amenity of either the future 
residents of the development or of neighbouring properties.

8.26 Privacy and overlooking
The only dwelling adjacent is Mayfield. The development would clearly 
introduce a new dwelling about 50m from Mayfield house itself and about 15 
from the front garden of Mayfield. These distances are not considered such 
that any detrimental amenity impact arises from the development, to the front 
or side elevations of Mayfield. No windows are proposed on the boundary to 
the rear garden of Mayfield, and no other overlooking issues arise.

8.27 With a 50m distance between Mayfield and the proposed dwelling house, it is 
considered that no significant detrimental loss of privacy or overlooking arises 
for the occupants of the future development from occupants of Mayfield.

8.28 Highways Impact
Highways impact is assessed within TVBRLP policies T1: Managing 
Movement and T2: Parking Standards. These require appropriate provision of 
access and parking and turning areas.

8.29 The access/egress point into the site is clearly indicated on the submitted 
drawings. Adequate visibility splays are provided to ensure a safe means of 
accessing and egressing from the development. The point of access leads into 
an area dedicated to the parking and manoeuvring of cars. The space 
available can accommodate the required car parking spaces to serve the 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 30



dwelling (as per the parking standards in the TVBRLP). The proposal would 
not, subject to appropriate conditions, therefore give rise to acceptable solution 
with regard to highway safety. 

8.30 Drainage impact
Drainage and water management matters are addressed in TVBRLP policy E7: 
Water Management. This requires development to not result in deterioration of 
water quality, nor to result in risk in terms of ground water quality or flooding

8.31 The submission is made with indicative details of a Sewage Treatment Plant, 
(STP). The siting of the STP is indicated on submitted plans, and final, 
technical details would be dealt with at Building Control stage.

8.32 The development is required to be designed and built to meet Regulation 36 2 
(b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water efficiency as set out in part G2 
of Building Regulations 2015. This is in the interests of improving water usage 
efficiency in accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. This requirement can be provided for within a condition. 

8.33 Subject to a condition in respect of water consumption at the property, to 
ensure compliance with TVBRLP policy E7 Water management, the proposal 
is considered to accord with this Policy.

8.34 Other matters
While noting that Houghton has been designated as a Neighbourhood Plan 
Area, a Neighbourhood Plan has not been adopted at this moment in time. 
Consequently no weight can be afforded to this matter in the determination of 
this application. Likewise, The Houghton Village Design Guide is in draft form, 
and has not been adopted. Consequently little weight can be afforded to this 
draft document. 

9.0 CONCLUSION
9.1 The proposed dwelling is considered to represent an acceptable form of 

development for this site and accords with the relevant policies of the TVBRLP. 
The applicant has responded to the previously refused scheme by reducing the 
overall scale, massing and appearance of the dwelling and utilised ‘visual’ (roof 
heights, eaves height, materials etc) and ‘physical’ measures (recessing the 
‘extension’ from the front face of the dwelling) to achieve this. The proposal is 
accompanied by details of proposed tree loss, and suitable replacement 
planting to maintain a visual, woodland contribution to the Houghton street 
scene following construction. Achieving these measures is important to not 
only to preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area, but 
also assist in integrating the new dwelling into the street scene. Subject to 
appropriate conditions securing both planting and long term maintenance of 
the wooded area the proposal preserves the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area, and assists in preserving the setting of nearby Listed 
buildings. 

9.2 The proposal is also acceptable with regard to highway safety, the amenity of 
nearby neighbours, and the amenity of future occupants of the dwelling, 
biodiversity matters, drainage and water supply, in accordance with the 
policies of the TVBRLP. The proposal is considered acceptable.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 31



10.0 RECOMMENDATION
PERMISSION subject to:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission.
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers: 16/291/02 Rev. G; 16/291/03 Rev. H; 17347-BT7. 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

3. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.

4. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until Woodland Management Plan, 
and a schedule of implementation and maintenance for a minimum 
period of 20 years has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details 
of the arrangements for the phasing of the implementation and 
ongoing maintenance during that period in accordance with 
appropriate British Standards or other recognised codes of 
practise. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved schedule.
Reason:  To ensure the provision, retention and maintenance to a 
suitable standard of approved woodland to maintain and enhance 
the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the 
development in the interest of visual amenity and to contribute to 
the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E2.

5. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies E1 and E9.

6. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water 
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 32



Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016.

7. At least the first 6 metres of the access track measured from the 
nearside edge of carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be 
surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access 
commencing and retained as such at all times.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

8. Any gates shall be set back at least 6 metres from the edge of the 
carriageway of the adjoining highway and the access shall be 
splayed at an angle of 45 degrees from this point to the edge of the 
highway.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

9. Prior to the first occupation of the building hereby permitted,  the 
car parking space(s), turning and manoeuvring area shall be 
constructed, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved 
plans. The area of land so provided shall be maintained at all times 
for this purpose.
Reason:  To ensure sufficient off-street parking has been provided 
and in the interest of highways safety in accordance with the Test 
Valley Revised Local Plan 2016 Policies T1 and T2.

10. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout 
for the parking and manoeuvring on site of contractor's and 
delivery vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement 
of development and retained for the duration of the construction 
period.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety and in the interest of 
protecting Trees subject to a Woodland Preservation Order in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policies T1 and E2.

11. Prior to the commencement of development the visibility splays, 
reference Plan 16/291/03 Rev. H shall be provided.  Nothing within 
the approved visibility splays shall exceed 1 metre above the level 
of the adjacent carriageway (including the land level and any walls, 
fences and vegetation).  Notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) these 
visibility splays shall be maintained in accordance with the above 
details at all times.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

12. Development shall proceed in accordance with the measures set 
out in section 6.1 'Mitigation' of the Ecological Assessment- Interim 
Report Land at Meadow View, Houghton' (Aluco Ecology, June 
2018). 
Reason:  To avoid impacts to protected and notable species and to 
conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy E5 of 
the Test Valley Revised Local Plan DPD.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 33



13 All works to existing trees, together with the provision of new tree 
planting, and new boundary hedging (including the new hedge 
along the road frontage of the dwelling) shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details contained in Drw.No.17347-BT7 (Barrell 
Tree Consulting) prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby 
permitted. 
Reason:  To ensure that only appropriate works to the trees 
identified on this plan are undertaken, and that suitable planting 
takes place on-site in a timely manner, to ensure an appropriate tree 
cover remains following construction of the new dwelling, to 
protect the character and appearance of the Conservation Area in 
accordance with Policy E9 of the Test Valley Borough revised Local 
plan (2016). 

14. Prior to development taking place tree protective fencing shall be 
erected in accordance with the details contained in Drw.No.17347-
BT7 (Barrell Tree Consulting), the “Arboricultural Assessment and 
Method Statement” (Ref: 17347-AA6-PB), and the report “Manual for 
Managing Trees on development sites” (Barrell Tree Consulting). 
The tree protective measures shall be retained on site for the full 
duration of the construction activity. 
Reason:  To ensure that suitable tree protection has been erected 
prior to work being undertaken on site to minimise the chance of 
accidental damage to trees, and that appropriate tree cover remains 
following construction of the new dwelling, to protect the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area in accordance with Policy 
E9 of the Test Valley Borough revised Local plan (2016). 

Notes to applicant
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

2 Birds' nests, when occupied or being built, and the widespread 
species of reptile receive legal protection under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).  It is highly advisable to 
undertake clearance of potential bird nesting habitat (such as 
hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) outside the bird 
nesting season, which is generally seen as extending from March to 
the end of August, although may extend longer depending on local 
conditions. If there is absolutely no alternative to doing the work in 
during this period then a thorough, careful and quiet examination of 
the affected area must be carried out before clearance starts. If 
occupied nests are present then work must stop in that area, a 
suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance 
can only recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its 
own accord.  Reptile habitat such as compost heaps should be 
carefully cleared by hand during warmer months as if hibernating 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 34



reptiles are disturbed they will die.  Any reptiles revealed should be 
moved to adjacent retained rougher / boundary habitat or allowed to 
move off of their own accord.

3. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at 
any point during this development. Should this occur, further 
advice should be sought from Natural England and/or a 
professional ecologist.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 35



APPENDIX B

Officer Update Report to Southern Area Planning Committee on 9 October 
2018
___________________________________________________________________

APPLICATION NO. 18/01953/FULLS
SITE Land adjacent to Meadow View, Houghton, 

Stockbridge, SO20 6LT, HOUGHTON 
COMMITTEE DATE 9 October 2018
ITEM NO. 8
PAGE NO. 35 - 58

___________________________________________________________________

1.0 CONSULTATIONS/REPRESENTATIONS
1.1 Houghton Parish Council. Objection (Summarised)

 The copse is part of an ambitious five year programme of work by the 
British Trust for ornithology – to improve knowledge & understanding of 
breeding owl species. 

 Owls are thought to breed here. 
 The village Rookery is on site too.
 Migrant birds, many on the red list, are observed in the copse. The 

River Test is ideal as one of the green corridors for migrating birds, with 
its small sheltered woods and copses.

 Houghton is a small conservation village which has lost 3 vital habitats 
in recent years, and seen unprecedented development over the last two 
years, with 13 houses built within the next year, 6 already in Kents 
Orchard, potential replacement of Dianthus, works to South End 
Cottage and Houghton Farmhouse with a disastrous effect on bio 
diversity. 

 This is its last remaining copse. Its native trees and bushes make it an 
excellent bio-diverse habitat, with an understorey perfect for foraging 
ground feeding birds, animals and insects which must be preserved as 
part of the ‘bigger conservation picture’.

 The whole wood tree preservation order is of huge benefit to 
conservation and biodiversity in Houghton and beyond. 

 The village requests this is retained in perpetuity.
 The proposal almost certainly contravenes the Conservation of habitats 

and Species Regs, 2010. 
 The ecologists report failed to take this cumulative impact into account, 

as did the HCC Ecologists response. 
 Loss of biodiversity recently included the mistaken removal of an 

ancient hedgerow. Trees were lost at the Kents Orchard development.
 There is no current proposal for a garage or outbuildings which would 

further impact on the biodiversity of the copse.
 The Parish Council has never seen so many objections to an 

application, which indicates how important the copse is to the village.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 36



1.2 Tree Officer – No objection (Summarised)
Satisfied that the Arboricultural Reports Barrell Tree Care Report address the 
arboricultural aspects of this case as thoroughly as can be.  
Please seek removal of PD rights and ensure that an informative is attached to 
any consent.

2.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
2.1 The Parish Council’s additional response is clear. The HCC Ecologist has 

however, clearly stated that the submitted Ecology Report contained all Survey 
information required, including a mitigation section, to mitigate the impact of 
the development on ecological interests. These are included in the proposed 
conditions. 

2.2 Conditions have been recommended that secure the planting and future 
management of the woodland, which has hitherto been absent. 

2.3 The representation made does not therefore alter the officer’s 
recommendation. 

2.4 With reference to the Tree Officer additional response, paragraph 206 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework states Planning conditions should only be 
imposed where they are:

1. necessary;
2. relevant to planning and;
3. to the development to be permitted;
4. enforceable;
5. precise and;
6. reasonable in all other respects.

In this circumstance the blanket removal of permitted development rights 
would not be necessary and would be considered unreasonable as the 
removal of any tree within the site would require the formal consent of the 
Council. To undertake works to a preserved tree without first obtaining consent 
can result in criminal prosecution. Secondly, no evidence has been advanced 
to demonstrate that works which would constitute permitted development 
would result in harm to any protected trees. As such, it is the view of officers 
that such a condition should not be added to the decision should permission be 
granted.   

2.5 Point of clarification
Pages 57-58 comprise Appendix A, the plans and elevations for the refused 
scheme 17/02017/FULLS. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION
PERMISSION subject to conditions and notes as per agenda report 
recommendation and additional Note no. 4. 
Notes 1-3 and note 4.
4. The various trees standing within this site are all protected by virtue of 

standing within the Houghton Conservation Area and also by Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO.TVBC.1124) Damage to any of the trees not 
identified for removal on the approved plans is an offence. Failure to 

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 37



comply in full with Barrell Tree Consultancy Arboricultural Assessment 
and Method Statement 17347-AA2-PB is likely to result in damage to the 
trees. Damage to the trees may lead to the prosecution of those 
undertaking the work and also of those instructing, causing or permitting 
the works.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 38



Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 39



E
ave 34.77

R
id

g
e 3

8
.2

1

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

6

E

a

v

e

 
3

3

.
1

1

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

7

E
a
v
e
 
3
4
.
8
3

Eave 34.54

E
a
v
e
 
3
2
.
1
8

E

P

E

P

E

P

G

 
3

0

.
3

0

G
 
3
0
.
3
3

G

 

2

9

.
9

7

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

2

I

C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

P

P

P

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

8

.
1

4

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

4

.
3

5

Rid
ge 3

7.2
4

R
i
d
g
e
 
3
3
.
1
2

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
8
7

3
0
.
3
9

3
0
.
3
8

3
0
.
3
7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.
2

2

3

0

.
3

4

3
0
.
4
3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.
9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.

6

7

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

62

9

.

8

9

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

2

3
0
.
1
0

2

9

.

9

1

2

9

.

9

2
3

0

.

1

0

30.20

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

2

3

0

.

1

5

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

0

5

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

2

7

3

0

.

0

3

3

0

.

0

2

3

0

.

2

9

3

0

.

1

1

3
0
.1

0

30.03

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

0

1

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

9

0

3

0

.

0

5

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

1

4

3

0

.
3

6

3

0

.
4

1

3

0

.
3

7

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2
9
.
5
9

2

9

.

7

9

3
0
.
0
2

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

6

3
0
.
1
4

3

0

.
2

2

3
0
.
3
4

3
0
.
3
3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
3
1

2
9
.
4
5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3
0
.
2
8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
3
1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
3
5

3
0
.
4
4

3

0

.
4

1

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3
0
.
3
2

3

0

.
1

6

3

0

.
1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3
0
.
3
3

3
0
.
2
2

3
0
.
3
4

3

0

.
3

5

3

0

.
3

0

3

0

.
1

6

2
9
.
9
9

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.
8

8

2
9
.
9
4

2

9

.
9

1

3

0

.

0

0

3
0
.2

5

3
0
.1

9

3

0

.
1

0

3
0
.0

7

3
0
.0

6

3

0

.
1

0

3

0

.
0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

29.99

3

0

.

0

4

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

1

8

3
0
.2

4

3
0
.1

8

2
9
.8

2

2
9
.6

9

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
7
1

2
9
.
8
3

3
0
.
1
1

30.05

M

 

E

 

A

 

D

 

O

 

W

 

 

 

V

 

I

 

E

 

W

S

 

O

 

U

 

T

 

H

 

 

 

E

 

N

 

D

 

 

 

C

 

O

 

T

 

T

 

A

 

G

 

E

 

S

D

i

l

a

p

i

d

a

t

e

d

 

B

u

i

l

d

i

n

g

D

i

l

a

p

i

d

a

t

e

d

 

B

u

i

l

d

i

n

g

D

i

l

a

p

i

d

a

t

e

d

B

u

i

l

d

i

n

g

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

F
 A

 I
 T

 H
 F

 U
 L

 L
 S

  
 D

 R
 O

 V
 E

G
r
a
s
s
 T

r
a
c
k

W

o

o

d

l

a

n

d

S

t

o

r

e

1
1
.
5
m

5
.
2
m

6
.
2
m

1
0
.
2
m

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

5

5

2

4

4

2

4

4

5

4

2

1

2

1

1

4

2

4

N
e
w

s
e
w

a
g
e

t
r
e
a
t
m

e
n
t

t
a
n
k

V
i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

R
W

P
 1

R
W

P
 2

R
W

P
 3

R
W

P
 4

R
W

P
 7

R
W

P
 6

R
W

P
 5

R
W

P
 8

R
W

P
 9

R
W

P
 1

0

R
W

P
 11

R
W

P
 13

R
W

P
 12

M
H

1

M
H

2

S
o

a
k
a

w
a

y

S
o

a
k
a

w
a

y

S
o

a
k
a

w
a

y

V

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

 
4

3

m

P
1

P
2

P
3

6000

2000

D
i
n
i
n
g

7
6
2

762

7
6
2

7
6
2

762

7
6
2

7
6
2

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
/
 
S

t
u
d
y

S
n
u
g

W
C

E
n
t
r
a
n
c
e

B
o
o
t

K
i
t
c
h
e
n

S
c
u
l
l
e
r
y
 
/
 
U

t
i
l
i
t
y

L
a
u
n
d
r
y

7
6
2

8
3
8

F
a
m

i
l
y
 
L
o
b
b
y

c
o
a
t
s

D
W

W
a
s
h
i
n
g

D
r
y
i
n
g

G
r
o
u
n
d
 
f
l
o
o
r

762

7
6
2

7
6
2

762

762

7
6
2

762

M
a
s
t
e
r
 
B

e
d
r
o
o
m

M
a
s
t
e
r
 
e
n
-
s
u
i
t
e

D
r
e
s
s
i
n
g

F
a
m

i
l
y
 
L
o
b
b
y

7
6
2

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
3

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
1

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
2

E
n
-
s
u
i
t
e
 
3

E
n
-
s
u
i
t
e
 
1

E
n
-
s
u
i
t
e
 
2

F
i
r
s
t
 
f
l
o
o
r

u
p

u
p

R
W

P
 
1

R
W

P
 
2

R
W

P
 
3

R
W

P
 
4

R
W

P
 
7

R
W

P
 
6

R
W

P
 
5

R
W

P
 
8

R
W

P
 
9

R
W

P
 
1
0

R
W

P
 
1
1

R
W

P
 
1

3

R
W

P
 
1
2

R
W

P
 
1

R
W

P
 
2

R
W

P
 
3

R
W

P
 
4

R
W

P
 
7

R
W

P
 
6

R
W

P
 
5

R
W

P
 
8

R
W

P
 
9

R
W

P
 
1
0

R
W

P
 
1
1

R
W

P
 
1

3

R
W

P
 
1
2

R
o
o
f
 
p
l
a
n

R
W

P
 
1

R
W

P
 
2

R
W

P
 
3

R
W

P
 
4

R
W

P
 
7

R
W

P
 
6

R
W

P
 
5

R
W

P
 
8

R
W

P
 
9

R
W

P
 
1
0

R
W

P
 
1
1

R
W

P
 
1
3

R
W

P
 
1
2

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

F
a

r
m

1

3

S
o

u
t
h

 
E

n
d

 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

s

1

6

H
o

u
g

h
t
o

n

M
e
a
d
o
w

1

5

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

1

7

V
i
e
w

S
o
u
t
h
 
A

c
r
e

F

a

r

m

 

H

o

u

s

e

H

o

u

g

h

t

o

n

D

i

a

n

t

h

u

s

2
9
.
9

m

1

C
o
b
b
l
e
r
s

3

S
o

u
t
h

v
i
e

w

V
i
n

e
 
C

o
t
t

B

a

r

h

a

m

 

F

a

r

m

R
o
w

a
n
s

S

o

u

t

h

 

E

n

d

L

a

v

e

n

d

e

r

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

G
e
o
r
g
e
s

L
B

2
9
.
9
m

R

e

t

r

e

a

t

O
f
f
i
c
e

E
s
t
a

t
e

1

9

T

h

a

t

c

h

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

G
a
r
a
g
e

1

M
a

r
t
i
n
s

2

2

S

o

u

t

h

 

E

n

d

G
P

©
C

r
o

w
n

 
C

o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
a

n
d

 
d

a
t
a

b
a

s
e

 
r
i
g

h
t
s
 
2

0
1

6
 
O

S
 
1

0
0

0
1

9
9

8
0

G

a

t

e

R

u

in

s

G

a

t

e

15
57

0

94
62

N

e

w

s

e

w

a

g

e

t

r

e

a

t

m

e

n

t

t

a

n

k

0
1

2
3

4
5

S
c
a

l
e

I
n
 
M

e
t
e
r
s
 
a
t
 
1
:
1
0
0

6
7

8
9

1
0

0

S
c
a
l
e

I
n

 
M

e
t
e

r
s
 
a

t
 
1

:
2

0
0

4
6

2
8

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

J
O

B

S
C

A
L

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H
O

R

1
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O

T
I
T

L
E

R
E

V

G

D
o

 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
,
 
u

s
e

 
f
i
g

u
r
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
S

u
b

j
e

c
t
 
t
o

 
s
i
t
e

s
u

r
v
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
a

l
l
 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

r
y
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

u
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 
d

i
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
,
 
e

r
r
o

r
s
 
o

r
 
o

m
i
s
s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e

A
r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
b

e
f
o

r
e

 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
o

t
h

e
r
 
r
e

l
e

v
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
s
.

R
E

V
 
 
 
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

S
U

E

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
H

o
u
s
e

S
o
u
t
h
 
E

n
d

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

S
O

2
0
 
6
L
T

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
p
l
a
n
s
,
 
s
i
t
e
 
a
n
d

l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n

 
 
 
-

L
R

1
8

1
1

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

1
6
/
2
9
1
/
0
2

N

S
i
t
e

 
p

l
a

n
 
1
:
2

0
0

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
7

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

1
3

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

2
1

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
e

-
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
C

L
R

0
7

0
3

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
D

L
R

0
9

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
E

L
R

2
6

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
F

L
R

0
2

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
G

L
R

2
4

0
7

1
8

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n

N

s
c
a

l
e

 
1

:
2

5
0

0

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 40



H
a
n
d
 
m

a
d
e
 
c
l
a
y
 
t
i
l
e
 
r
o
o
f
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
l
f
 
r
o
u
n
d

r
i
d
g
e
 
t
i
l
e
s
 
t
o
 
m

a
t
c
h

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n
 
a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

b
r
i
c
k
 
h
e
a
d
e
r
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

c
i
l
l

H
a
r
d
w

o
o
d
 
p
a
n
e
l
l
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

B
r
i
c
k
 
p
l
i
n
t
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
c
a
n
t
 
b
r
i
c
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
l
u
e
 
e
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
b
r
i
c
k

t
o
 
b
a
s
e

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
 
w

i
t
h
 
l
e
a
d
 
c
h
e
e
k
s

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
s
 
i
n
 
a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
b
r
i
c
k

h
e
a
d
e
r
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

B
r
i
c
k
 
c
h
i
m

n
e
y
 
s
t
a
c
k
s
 
w

i
t
h
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
 
c
o
r
b
e
l
l
i
n
g
 
a
n
d

 
b
a

n
d
 
t
o

m
a
t
c
h
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
i
n
g

H
a
n
d
m

a
d
e
 
b
r
i
c
k
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
i
n
 
f
l
e
m

i
s
h
 
b
o
n
d

w
i
t
h
 
l
i
n
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
i
n
g

D
o
v
e
c
o
t
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

T
a
l
l
 
t
e
r
r
a
c
o
t
t
a
 
p
o
t
s
 
o
n
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
p
l
i
n
t
h

R
e
n
d

e
r

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
p
o
r
c
h
 
o
n
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
h
a
r
d
w

o
o
d
 
b
r
a
c
k
e
t
s

B
r
i
c
k
 
b
a
n
d

N
o
r
t
h
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

S
o
u
t
h
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n
 
a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

b
r
i
c
k
 
h
e
a
d
e
r
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

c
i
l
l

B
r
i
c
k
 
p
l
i
n
t
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
c
a
n
t
 
b
r
i
c
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
l
u
e
 
e
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
b
r
i
c
k

t
o
 
b
a
s
e

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
 
w

i
t
h
 
l
e
a
d
 
c
h
e
e
k
s

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
s
 
i
n
 
a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
b
r
i
c
k

h
e
a
d
e
r
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

B
r
i
c
k
 
c
h
i
m

n
e
y
 
s
t
a
c
k
s
 
w

i
t
h
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
 
c
o
r
b
e
l
l
i
n
g
 
a
n
d

 
b
a

n
d
 
t
o

m
a
t
c
h
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
i
n
g

H
a
n
d
m

a
d
e
 
b
r
i
c
k
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
i
n
 
f
l
e
m

i
s
h
 
b
o
n
d

w
i
t
h
 
l
i
n
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
i
n
g

D
o
v
e
c
o
t
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

T
a
l
l
 
t
e
r
r
a
c
o
t
t
a
 
p
o
t
s
 
o
n
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
p
l
i
n
t
h

R
e
n
d

e
r

B
r
i
c
k
 
b
a
n
d

+
 
3
.
3
0
4

1
S

T
 
F

L

+
 
0

0
.
0

0

+
 
3
.
0
0
4

 
C

L

D
a
t
u
m

 
l
e
v
e

l

G
F

 
F

L

+
 
0
.
1
0
4

+
 
3
.
3
0
4

1
S

T
 
F

L

+
 
0

0
.
0

0

+
 
3
.
0
0
4

 
C

L

D
a
t
u
m

 
l
e
v
e

l

G
F

 
F

L

+
 
0
.
1
0
4

R
e

n
d

e
r

H
a

n
d

 
m

a
d

e
 
c
l
a

y
 
t
i
l
e

 
r
o

o
f
 
a

n
d

 
h

a
l
f
 
r
o

u
n

d

r
i
d

g
e

 
t
i
l
e

s
 
t
o

 
m

a
t
c
h

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
g

l
a

z
e

d
 
w

i
n

d
o

w
s
 
i
n

 
a

l
u

m
i
n

i
u

m
 
f
r
a

m
e

 
p

a
i
n

t
e

d

w
i
t
h

 
n

e
u

t
r
a

l
 
c
o

l
o

u
r
e

d
 
s
a

n
d

s
t
o

n
e

 
c
i
l
l

L
e

a
d

 
r
o

o
f
 
d

o
r
m

e
r
 
w

i
t
h

 
l
e

a
d

 
c
h

e
e

k
s

B
r
i
c
k
 
c
h

i
m

n
e

y
 
s
t
a

c
k
s
 
w

i
t
h

 
f
e

a
t
u

r
e

 
c
o

r
b

e
l
l
i
n

g
 
a

n
d

 
b

a
n

d
 
t
o

m
a

t
c
h

 
l
o

c
a

l
 
d

e
t
a

i
l
i
n

g

H
a

n
d

m
a

d
e

 
b

r
i
c
k
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n
s
 
i
n

 
f
l
e

m
i
s
h

 
b

o
n

d

w
i
t
h

 
l
i
n

e
 
p

o
i
n

t
i
n

g

D
o

v
e

c
o

t
 
w

i
n

d
o

w

T
a

l
l
 
t
e

r
r
a

c
o

t
t
a

 
p

o
t
s
 
o

n
 
n

e
u

t
r
a

l
 
c
o

l
o

u
r
e

d
 
s
a

n
d

s
t
o

n
e

 
p

l
i
n

t
h

B
r
i
c
k
 
b

a
n

d

W
e

s
t
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o
n

+
 
3
.
3
0
4

1
S

T
 
F

L

+
 
0
0
.
0
0

+
 
3
.
0
0
4

 
C

L

D
a
t
u
m

 
l
e
v
e
l

B
r
i
c
k
 
p

l
i
n

t
h

 
w

i
t
h

 
c
a

n
t
 
b

r
i
c
k
s
 
a

n
d

 
b

l
u

e
 
e

n
g

i
n

e
e

r
i
n

g
 
b

r
i
c
k

t
o

 
b

a
s
e

D
o

u
b

l
e

 
g

l
a

z
e

d
 
d

o
o

r
s
 
i
n

 
a

l
u

m
i
n

i
u

m
 
f
r
a

m
e

 
p

a
i
n

t
e

d
 
b

r
i
c
k

h
e

a
d

e
r
 
c
o

u
r
s
e

 
w

i
t
h

 
n

e
u

t
r
a

l
 
c
o

l
o

u
r
e

d
 
s
a

n
d

s
t
o

n
e

 
c
i
l
l

E
a

s
t
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

S
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
A

A
'

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n
 
a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

w
i
t
h
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

B
r
i
c
k
 
p
l
i
n
t
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
c
a
n
t
 
b
r
i
c
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
l
u
e
 
e
n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
b
r
i
c
k

t
o
 
b
a
s
e

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
 
w

i
t
h
 
l
e
a
d
 
c
h
e
e
k
s

B
r
i
c
k
 
c
h
i
m

n
e
y
 
s
t
a
c
k
s
 
w

i
t
h
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
 
c
o
r
b
e
l
l
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
b
a
n
d
 
t
o

m
a
t
c
h
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
i
n
g

T
a
l
l
 
t
e
r
r
a
c
o
t
t
a
 
p
o
t
s
 
o
n
 
n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
p
l
i
n
t
h

R
e
n
d
e
r

B
r
i
c
k
 
b
a
n
d

H
a
r
d
w

o
o
d
 
p
a
n
e
l
l
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

R
e
n
d
e
r

P
l
a
n

1
5
0
 
m

m
 
X

 
1
5
0
 
m

m
 
H

u
r
r
 
p
o
l
e

F
r
o
n
t
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

R
e
a
r
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n

1
2
5
 
m

m
 
X

 
7
5
m

m
 
h
e
a
d

7
5
 
m

m
 
X

 
2
2
 
m

m
 
s
p
l
e
a
t

7
5
 
m

m
 
X

 
2
2
 
m

m
 
b
r
a
c
e

V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
g
a
t
e

P
e
d
e
s
t
r
i
a
n
 
g
a
t
e

S
t
a
i
n
l
e
s
s
 
s
t
e
e
l
 
h
i
n
g
e

C
r
o
o
k
e
d
 
5
 
b
a
r
 
g
a
t
e

0
1

2
3

4
5

S
c
a
l
e

I
n

 
M

e
t
e

r
s
 
a

t
 
1

:
1

0
0

6
7

8
9

1
0

J
O

B

S
C

A
L

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H
O

R

1
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O

T
I
T

L
E

R
E

V

H

D
o

 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
,
 
u

s
e

 
f
i
g

u
r
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
S

u
b

j
e

c
t
 
t
o

 
s
i
t
e

s
u

r
v
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
a

l
l
 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

r
y
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

u
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 
d

i
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
,
 
e

r
r
o

r
s
 
o

r
 
o

m
i
s
s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e

A
r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
b

e
f
o

r
e

 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
o

t
h

e
r
 
r
e

l
e

v
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
s
.

R
E

V
 
 
 
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

S
U

E

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
H

o
u
s
e

S
o
u
t
h
 
E

n
d

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

S
O

2
0
 
6
L
T

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
,

v
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
e
d
e
s
t
r
i
a
n
 
g
a
t
e

d
e
t
a
i
l

 
 
 
-

L
R

1
8

1
1

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

1
6
/
2
9
1
/
0
3

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
7

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

1
3

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

2
1

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
e

-
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
C

L
R

0
7

0
3

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
D

L
R

0
9

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
E

L
R

2
6

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
F

L
R

0
2

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
G

L
R

0
9

0
2

1
8

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
H

L
R

2
4

0
7

1
8

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 41



T
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
v
e
r
g
r
o
w

n
 
h
e
d
g
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
t

p
o
i
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
 
t
o
 
r
e
s
t
o
r
e
 
i
t
s
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
a
n
c
e

a
s
 
a
 
v
i
s
u
a
l
 
b
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
 
f
e
a
t
u
r
e
s
.
 
 
P

r
u
n
i
n
g
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
t
o

b
e
 
r
e
-
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
a
t
 
n
o
 
l
o
w

e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
2
m

 
a
b
o
v
e

e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
w

i
t
h
 
l
a
t
e
r
a
l
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t

a
n
n
o
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
o
n
 
p
l
a
n
.

T
X

P
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
b
a
r
r
i
e
r
/
f
e
n
c
i
n
g

T
X

T
X

B
S

 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
A

Tr
ee

s o
f h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity

B
S

 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
B

E
s
t
i
m

a
t
e
d
 
t
r
e
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
n
o
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
 
o
n
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l

l
a
n
d
 
s
u
r
v
e
y
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
e
d
 
c
r
o
w

n
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
s

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
n
e
w

 
h
a
w

t
h
o
r
n
 
h
e
d
g
e
 
(
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
n
u
r
s
e
r
y
 
s
t
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
a
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
a
t

l
e
a
s
t
 
1
.
5
m

 
a
b
o
v
e
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
)
.

T
X

T
X

B
S

 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
C

B
S

 
c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
U

Tr
ee

s o
f m

od
er

at
e 

qu
al

ity

Tr
ee

s o
f l

ow
 q

ua
lit

y

Tr
ee

s u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r r

et
en

tio
n

R
o
o
t
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
r
e
a
 
(
R

P
A

)
 
b
o
u
n
d
a
r
i
e
s
 
f
o
r

c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
A

 
a
n
d
 
B

 
t
r
e
e
s

R
o
o
t
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
r
e
a
 
(
R

P
A

)
 
b
o
u
n
d
a
r
i
e
s
 
f
o
r

c
a
t
e
g
o
r
y
 
C

 
t
r
e
e
s

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
e
x
c
l
u
s
i
o
n
 
z
o
n
e
 
(
C

E
Z

)

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
r
e
m

o
v
a
l
s

T
X

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
a
y
o
u
t

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
h
a
w

t
h
o
r
n
/
h
a
z
e
l
/
p
r
i
v
e
t
 
h
e
d
g
e
 
(
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
o
n
 
a

5
0
%

/
3
5
%

/
1
5
%

 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
m

i
x
)
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e

n
u
r
s
e
r
y
 
s
t
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
a
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
1
m

 
a
b
o
v
e

g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
a
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
)
.

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
h
e
a
v
y
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
Y

e
w

(
T

a
x
u
s
 
b
a
c
c
a
t
a

)
,
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
2
.
5
m

 
a
t
 
p
o
i
n
t

o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
1
2
-
1
4
c
m

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
h
e
a
v
y
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
C

r
a
b

a
p
p
l
e
 
(
M

a
l
u
s
 
s
y
l
v
e
s
t
r
i
s
)
,
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
2
.
5
m

 
a
t

p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
1
2
-
1
4
c
m

2

1

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
h
e
a
v
y
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
F

i
e
l
d
 
m

a
p
l
e

(
A

c
e
r
 
c
a
m

p
e
s
t
r
e

)
,
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
3
m

 
a
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f

p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
1
2
-
1
4
c
m

3

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
h
e
a
v
y
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
S

m
a
l
l

l
e
a
v
e
d
 
l
i
m

e
 
(
T

i
l
i
a
 
c
o
r
d
a
t
a
)
,
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
2
.
5
m

 
a
t

p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
1
2
-
1
4
m

4

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
h
e
a
v
y
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
W

i
l
d
 
c
h
e
r
r
y

(
P

r
u
n
u
s
 
a
v
i
u
m

)
,
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
2
.
5
m

 
a
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f

p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
1
2
-
1
4
m

5

T
r
e
e
 
N

o

S
p
e
c
i
e
s

C
a
t
e
g
o
r
y

R
P

A

R
a
d
i
u
s

T
r
e
e
 
W

o
r
k
s

A
l
l
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d

t
r
e
e
s
 
&

h
e
d
g
e
s

C
a
r
r
y
 
o
u
t
 
s
a
f
e
t
y
 
c
h
e
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
l
i
f
t
 
o
v
e
r

s
i
t
e
 
t
o
 
3
-
4
m

 
a
s
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
.

T
6
0
1

Y
e
w

C
4
.
2

-

T
6
0
2

A
s
h

B
1
0
.
2

-

T
6
0
3

A
s
h

B
6
.
3

-

T
6
0
4

A
s
h

A
1
3
.
8

-

T
6
0
5

A
s
h

C
6
.
3

-

T
6
0
6

B
l
a
c
k
t
h
o
r
n

C
1
.
8

-

T
6
0
7

A
s
h

C
5
.
1

-

T
6
0
8

A
s
h

C
4
.
8

-

T
6
0
9

A
s
h

B
6
.
9

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
1
0

A
s
h

C
3
.
6

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

G
6
1
1

E
l
d
e
r

C
3
.
0

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
1
2

A
s
h

C
3
.
6

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
e
x
t
a
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
m

o
v
a
l

T
6
1
3

A
s
h

C
5
.
1

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
1
4

A
s
h

C
2
.
4

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
1
5

L
a
u
r
e
l

C
4
.
8

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
e
x
t
a
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
m

o
v
a
l

T
6
1
6

H
a
w

t
h
o
r
n

C
2
.
7

-

T
6
1
7

A
s
h

C
4
.
2

-

T
6
1
8

A
s
h

U
3
.
6

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
p
r
u
d
e
n
t
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

H
6
1
9

A
s
h
,
 
h
a
w

t
h
o
r
n
,
 
e
l
d
e
r

C
3
.
0

R
e
d
u
c
t
i
v
e
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
 
t
o
 
r
e
s
t
o
r
e

h
e
d
g
e
r
o
w

 
f
o
r
m

 
-
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g

e
l
e
m

e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
p
r
u
n
i
n
g

(
2
m

 
a
b
o
v
e
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
)

T
6
2
0

Y
e
w

B
6
.
0

-

T
6
2
1

H
a
w

t
h
o
r
n

C
1
.
5

-

T
6
2
2

Y
e
w

C
1
.
8

-

T
6
2
3

Y
e
w

C
1
.
5

-

T
6
2
4

H
a
z
e
l

B
6
.
6

-

T
6
2
5

H
a
z
e
l

C
3
.
0

C
o
p
p
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l

T
6
2
6

H
a
z
e
l

B
6
.
6

C
o
p
p
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l

T
6
2
7

A
s
h

C
2
.
7

-

G
6
2
8

A
s
h
,
 
c
h
e
r
r
y

C
2
.
4

-

T
6
2
9

A
s
h

U
7
.
8

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
e
x
t
a
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
m

o
v
a
l

T
6
3
0

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
3
.
0

-

T
6
3
1

A
s
h

B
1
1
.
1

-

T
6
3
2

H
a
z
e
l

C
3
.
0

C
o
p
p
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l

T
6
3
3

A
s
h

B
3
.
3

-

T
6
3
4

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
2
.
4

-

G
6
3
5

H
a
z
e
l

C
3
.
6

-

T
6
3
6

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
1
.
8

-

T
6
3
7

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
2
.
4

-

T
6
3
8

A
s
h

C
4
.
8

-

T
6
3
9

A
s
h

C
2
.
4

-

T
6
4
0

A
p
p
l
e

C
2
.
7

-

T
6
4
1

H
a
z
e
l

C
3
.
0

-

T
6
4
2

S
p
i
n
d
l
e
 
t
r
e
e

C
3
.
0

-

T
6
4
3

A
s
h

C
3
.
0

-

T
6
4
4

A
s
h

B
3
.
6

-

T
6
4
5

W
i
l
l
o
w

C
8
.
4

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
4
6

W
i
l
l
o
w

C
7
.
2

C
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
e
x
t
a
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
r
e
m

o
v
a
l

T
6
4
7

A
s
h

B
6
.
6

-

T
6
4
8

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
3
.
0

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
4
9

A
s
h

C
3
.
6

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
0

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
3
.
0

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
1

E
l
d
e
r

C
4
.
8

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

G
6
5
2

C
h
e
r
r
y

C
2
.
4

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
3

A
s
h

U
2
.
4

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
p
r
u
d
e
n
t
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
4

A
s
h

C
6
.
0

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
5

A
s
h

C
2
.
4

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
6

A
s
h

C
4
.
8

-

T
6
5
7

A
s
h

C
3
.
0

-

G
6
5
8

B
e
e
c
h

C
1
.
5

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
5
9

A
s
h

C
1
.
8

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
6
0

A
s
h

B
1
3
.
2

C
r
o
w

n
 
r
e
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
a
 
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
o
f

7
m

 
t
o
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
 
c
a
n
o
p
y
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
n
o

l
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
1
4
m

 
f
r
o
m

 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l

T
6
6
1

A
s
h

B
8
.
1

C
r
o
w

n
 
r
e
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
a
 
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
o
f

7
m

 
t
o
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
 
c
a
n
o
p
y
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
n
o

l
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
n
 
1
4
m

 
f
r
o
m

 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l

T
6
6
2

A
s
h

B
1
4
.
1

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
6
3

Y
e
w

B
8
.
1

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t

T
6
6
4

A
s
h

U
7
.
8

F
e
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
p
r
u
d
e
n
t
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

R

W

P

 

1

R

W

P

 

2

R

W

P

 

3

R

W

P

 

4

R

W

P

 

7

R

W

P

 

6

R

W

P

 

5

R

W

P

 

8

R

W

P

 

9

R

W

P

 

1

0

R

W

P

 

1

1

R

W

P

 

1

3

R

W

P

 

1

2

N

e

w

s

e

w

a

g

e

t

r

e

a

t

m

e

n

t

t

a

n

k

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

0
 
M

e
t
r
e
s

5
1
0

2
0

S
c
a

l
e

:
 
1

:
2

0
0

 
@

 
A

0

1
5

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

6

E

a

v

e

 

3

3

.

1

1

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

7

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

7

7

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

8

3

E

a

v

e

 

3

3

.

5

8

E

a

v

e

 

3

2

.

5

9

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

5

4

E

a

v

e

 

3

2

.

1

8

E
P

E
P

E
P

F
H

G

 

3

0

.

3

0

G

 

3

0

.

3

3

G

 

2

9

.

9

7

C
L
 
3
0
.
1
2

I
C

C
L
 
3
0
.
1
0

I
C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

K

O

 

2

9

.

7

9

P

P

P

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

8

.

1

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

4

.

3

5

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

7

.

2

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

6

.

1

7

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

3

.

1

2

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

8

7

3

0

.

3

9

3

0

.

3

8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
0
1

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

4

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
0

2
9
.
8
5

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
4

3

0

.

0

3

3

0

.

0

3

2
9
.
6
7

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
6

2
9
.
8
9

2
9
.
7
6

2
9
.
8
2

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
1

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
9
4

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
9
8

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
9
2

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
1

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
0

3

0

.

2

0

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
5

3
0
.
2
5

3
0
.
0
9

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
3
7

3
0
.
2
7

3
0
.
0
3

3
0
.
0
2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
1
1

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

3

3
0
.
3
0

3
0
.
0
1

2
9
.
9
9

2
9
.
9
0

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
1
4

3

0

.

3

6

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

3

7

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.

8

6

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

5

9

2

9

.

7

9

3

0

.

0

2

2

9

.
9

0

29.86

3

0

.

1

4

3

0

.

2

2

W
M

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

2

9

3

0

.

3

1

2

9

.

4

5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

2

8

3

0

.
3

7

3

0

.

3

1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

4

4

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

1

6

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

1

6

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
0
5

2

9

.

8

8

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

1

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

2

9

.

9

1

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

1

9

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

7

3

0

.

0

6

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

0

4

29.9
5 29.9

9

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
1
8

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

6

9

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

7

1

2

9

.

8

3

3

0

.

1

1

3

0

.

0

5

M
 
E
 
A
 
D

 
O

 
W

 
 
 
V
 
I
 
E
 
W

S
 
O

 
U

 
T
 
H

 
 
 
E
 
N

 
D

 
 
 
C
 
O

 
T
 
T
 
A
 
G

 
E
 
S

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d

B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

F

 

A

 

I

 

T

 

H

 

F

 

U

 

L

 

L

 

S

 

 

 

D

 

R

 

O

 

V

 

E

T

a

r

m

a

c

G

r

a

s

s

 

T

r

a

c

k

T
a
r
m

a
c

S
t
o
r
e

1
1
.
5
m

5
.
2
m

6
.
2
m

1
0
.
2
m

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

5

5

2

4

4

2

4

4

5

4

2

1

2

1

1

4

2

4

T
6
0
4

T
6
0
2

T
6
0
3

T
6
0
9

T
6
2
4

T
6
2
6

T
6
3
1

T
6
3
3

T
6
4
4

T
6
4
7

T
6
6
0

T
6
6
1

T
6
6
2

T
6
6
3

T
6
0
1

T
6
0
5

T
6
0
6

T
6
0
7

T
6
0
8

T
6
1
0

G
6
1
1

T
6
1
2

T
6
1
3

T
6
1
4

T
6
1
5

T
6
1
6

T
6
1
7

H
6
1
9

T
6
2
2

T
6
2
3

T
6
2
1

T
6
2
5

T
6
2
7

G
6
2
8

T
6
3
0

T
6
3
2

T
6
3
4

G
6
3
5

T
6
3
6

T
6
3
7

T
6
4
0

T
6
3
9

T
6
3
8

T
6
4
1

T
6
4
2

T
6
4
3

T
6
1
8

T
6
2
9

T
6
5
3

T
6
6
4

T
6
4
5

T
6
4
6

T
6
4
8

T
6
4
9

T
6
5
0

T
6
5
1

T
6
5
5

T
6
5
4

G
6
5
2

T
6
5
9

T
6
5
7

T
6
5
6

G
6
5
8

H
6
1
9

H
6
1
9

H
6
1
9

T
6
2
0

M
on

ito
rin

g 
tr

ee
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
Al

w
ay

s:

SG
N

 1

ü
ha

ve
 a

 p
re

-c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t m

ee
tin

g
w

ith
 th

e 
tr

ee
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 b
ef

or
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ta
rt

s
ü

us
e 

th
e 

tr
ee

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 to

 re
gu

la
rly

ch
ec

k 
th

at
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
re

m
ai

ns
 fi

t f
or

pu
rp

os
e

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 rp

as
ü

ke
ep

 a
 w

rit
te

n 
re

co
rd

 o
f s

up
er

vi
sio

n

ü
in

st
al

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

be
fo

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

st
ar

ts
ü

m
ak

e 
su

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is 

fit
 fo

r
pu

rp
os

e,
 i.

e.
 it

 p
re

ve
nt

s d
am

ag
e 

to
tr

ee
s a

nd
 so

il
ü

ke
ep

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

er
e 

is
no

 ri
sk

 to
 tr

ee
s

ü
ge

t w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
to

 m
ov

e 
or

re
m

ov
e 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n

Fe
nc

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tr

ee
s

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N

 2

G
ro

un
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n
Al

w
ay

s:

SG
N

 3

ü
in

st
al

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

be
fo

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

st
ar

ts
ü

m
ak

e 
su

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is 

fit
 fo

r
pu

rp
os

e,
 i.

e.
 it

 p
re

ve
nt

s d
am

ag
e 

to
tr

ee
s a

nd
 so

il
ü

ke
ep

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

er
e 

is
no

 ri
sk

 to
 tr

ee
s

ü
ge

t w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
to

 m
ov

e 
or

re
m

ov
e 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n

He
ig

ht
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N

 6

ü
pr

ev
en

t t
he

 a
cc

es
s o

f v
eh

ic
le

s
in

to
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ar

ea
s t

al
le

r t
ha

n
th

e 
cr

iti
ca

l h
ei

gh
t

In
st

al
lin

g/
up

gr
ad

in
g 

su
rf

ac
in

g 
in

 R
PA

s
Al

w
ay

s:

SG
N

 9

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
m

in
im

ise
 d

am
ag

e 
to

 ro
ot

s a
nd

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 so

il 
in

 R
PA

s
ü

m
in

im
ise

 e
xc

av
at

io
n 

w
he

n 
in

st
al

lin
g

or
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 su
rf

ac
in

g 
in

 R
PA

s

In
st

al
lin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 R
PA

s
Al

w
ay

s:

SG
N

 1
1

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
se

le
ct

 th
e 

le
as

t d
am

ag
in

g 
op

tio
n

w
he

n 
in

st
al

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, s
o 

pr
io

rit
ise

tr
en

ch
le

ss
, o

ve
r b

ro
ke

n 
tr

en
ch

 o
ve

r
co

nt
in

uo
us

 tr
en

ch
ü

ha
nd

-d
ig

 tr
en

ch
es

 if
 tr

en
ch

le
ss

 is
 n

ot
fe

as
ib

le

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

in
 R

PA
s

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N

 1
2

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
av

oi
d 

ra
isi

ng
 g

ro
un

d 
le

ve
ls 

w
ith

in
1m

 o
f t

he
 tr

un
ks

 o
f r

et
ai

ne
d 

tr
ee

s

Po
llu

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
l

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N

 4

ü
ke

ep
 to

xi
c 

pr
od

uc
ts

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 R

PA
s

M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
ea

ch
 S

ite
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

N
ot

e 
(S

GN
) 

ca
n 

be
 f

ou
nd

 in
 a

 p
rin

te
d 

ha
rd

 c
op

y
co

m
pi

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

SG
N

s,
 is

su
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

Si
te

 M
an

ag
er

 a
t 

th
e 

pr
e-

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

sit
e 

m
ee

tin
g

(N
ot

e:
  T

hi
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 re
ta

in
ed

 o
n 

sit
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
of

 w
or

ks
). 

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, a
n 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
pd

f c
om

pi
la

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
SG

N
s,

 w
as

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 w

ith
 th

is 
dr

aw
in

g 
to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 a

nd
th

e 
cl

ie
nt

.  
Al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y,

 a
 p

df
 o

f e
ac

h 
SG

N
 c

an
 b

e 
do

w
nl

oa
de

d 
by

:
1.

cl
ic

ki
ng

 th
e 

im
ag

e 
lin

ks
 in

 th
e 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 p

df
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
is 

pl
an

;
2.

ho
ld

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 Q

R 
(Q

ui
ck

 R
es

po
ns

e)
 c

od
e 

re
ad

er
 o

ve
r t

he
 Q

R 
co

de
 in

 th
e 

pa
pe

r v
er

sio
n 

of
th

is 
pl

an
;  

or
,

3.
vi

sit
in

g 
ou

r w
eb

sit
e 

at
 h

tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w

.b
ar

re
llt

re
ec

ar
e.

co
.u

k/
re

so
ur

ce
s/

te
ch

ni
ca

l-g
ui

da
nc

e.

Ho
w

 to
 u

se
 p

la
n

w
w

w
.
b
a
r
r
e
l
l
t
r
e
e
c
a
r
e
.
c
o
.
u
k

P
r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
f
s
:
 
E

N
C

/
0

7
1

1
1

6
-
2

X
4

 
&

 
1

6
/
2

9
1

/
0

2
 
R

e
v
 
G

P
e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o
n

 
i
s
 
g
r
a
n
t
e
d

 
t
o

 
s
c
a
l
e

 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g

f
o
r
 

L
o
c
a
l
 

A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

 
A

p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 

p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s

r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
r
e
e

 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n

 
m

e
a
s
u
r
e
s
 
o
n
l
y
.
 
 
 
W

h
e
r
e

a
p
p
l
i
c
a
b
l
e

 
t
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
a
d

 
i
n

 
c
o
n
j
u
n
c
t
i
o
n

w
i
t
h

 
t
h
e
 
a
r
b
o
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
i
s
 
t
h
e

c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
 
B

a
r
r
e
l
l
 
T

r
e
e
 
C

o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
c
y
 
2
0
1
8
.

T
h
i
s
 
d
r
a

w
i
n
g

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
p
r
o

d
u
c
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
o

l
o

u
r
 
o
n
l
y
.

B
a

r
r
e

l
l
 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
f
:
1

7
3

4
7

-
B

T
7

c

T
r
e

e
 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
p

l
a

n

L
o

c
a

t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
r
e

e
s
,
 
c
a

t
e

g
o

r
i
s
a

t
i
o

n
 
&

 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
/
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

p
r
o

p
o

s
a

l
s
 
a

t
 
M

e
a

d
o

w
 
V

i
e

w
,
 
(
l
a

n
d

 
a

d
j
a

c
e

n
t
)
,
 
H

o
u
g

h
t
o

n
,

S
t
o

c
k
b

r
i
d
g

e

T
r
e
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
v
e

r
y
 
l
o

w
 
q

u
a

l
i
t
y

e
l
d

e
r
 
a

n
d

 
m

i
s
c
 
s
c
r
u

b

s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
–

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

U
n

s
u

s
t
a

i
n

a
b

l
e

 
a

s
h

 
s
a

p
l
i
n

g

g
r
o

w
i
n

g
 
i
n

 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

r
e

m
a

i
n

s
 
o

f
 
d

i
l
a

p
i
d

a
t
e

d

b
u

i
l
d

i
n

g
 
–

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

S
m

a
l
l
 
t
h

o
r
n

 
t
r
e

e
s
 
l
o

c
a

t
e

d

a
d

j
a

c
e

n
t
 
t
o

 
l
o

w
 
q

u
a

l
i
t
y
 
a

s
h

 
t
r
e

e

S
m

a
l
l
 
a

n
d

 
u

n
s
u

s
t
a

i
n

a
b

l
e

 
a

s
h

 
a

n
d

t
h

o
r
n

 
s
a

p
l
i
n

g
s
 
g

r
o

w
i
n

g
 
i
n

 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n

w
i
t
h

 
r
e

m
a

i
n

s
 
o

f
 
d

i
l
a

p
i
d

a
t
e

d
 
b

u
i
l
d

i
n

g
 
–

T
O

 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

A
r
e

a
 
o

f
 
s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
l
y
 
p

o
o

r
 
e

l
m

,

h
a

z
e

l
,
 
a

n
d

 
e

l
d

e
r
 
–

 
C

O
P

P
I
C

E

T
O

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
L

E
V

E
L

G
r
o

u
p

 
o

f
 
s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a

l
l
y
 
p

o
o

r
 
e

l
d

e
r

o
f
 
l
o

w
 
v
i
t
a

l
i
t
y
 
–

 
C

O
P

P
I
C

E
 
T

O

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
L

E
V

E
L

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 42

https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn03/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn06/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn09/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/


S

p

1

0

C

B

F

 
1

.
8

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

H

A

W

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

S

P

U

B

C

H

B

C

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

B

C

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

B

C

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

6

E

a

v

e

 
3

3

.
1

1

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

7

E
ave 34.77

E
a
v
e
 
3
4
.
8
3

Eave 3
3.5

8

Eave 3
2.5

9

Eave 34.54

E
a
v
e
 
3
2
.
1
8

3

0

.

0

1

F

H

G

 
3

0

.
3

0

G
 
3
0
.
3
3

G

 

2

9

.
9

7

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

2

I

C

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

0

I

C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

K

O

 
2
9
.
7
9

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

8

.
1

4

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

4

.
3

5

R
id

g
e 3

8
.2

1

Ridge 3
7.2

4

Rid
ge 3

6.1
7

R
i
d
g
e
 
3
3
.
1
2

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
8
7

3
0
.
3
9

3
0
.
3
8

3
0
.
3
7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.
2

2

3

0

.
3

4

3
0
.
4
3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.
8

7

2

9

.
9

3

2

9

.
9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

4

3
0
.
0
3

3
0
.
0
3

2

9

.

6

7

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

62

9

.

8

9

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

2

3
0
.
1
0

2

9

.

9

1

2

9

.

9

2

3

0

.

1

0

30.20

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

2

3

0

.

1

5

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

0

5

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

2

7

3

0

.

0

3

3

0

.

0

2

3

0

.

2

9

3

0

.

1

1

3
0
.1

0

30.03

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

0

1

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

9

0

3

0

.

0

5

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

1

4

3

0

.
3

6

3
0
.
4
1

3

0

.
3

7

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.
8

6

2

9

.
8

5

2
9
.
5
9

2

9

.

7

9

3
0
.
0
2

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

6

3
0
.
1
4

3

0

.
2

2

S

M

P

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

4

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

6

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

6

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

7

/

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

1

2

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

7

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

8

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

6

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

2

0

0

.

9

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

2

4

0

.

9

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

2

4

0

.

8

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

8

0

.

7

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

5

0

/

1

T

1

7

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

5

0

/

1

T

1

9

/

S

p

9

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

9

/

S

p

2

2

0

.

9

0

/

2

T

2

2

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

1

0

/

S

p

1

8

0

.

7

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

9

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

4

T

6

/

S

p

1

5

0

.

5

0

/

3

T

1

9

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

4

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

7

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

2

2

0

.

8

0

/

1

T

2

0

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

4

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

8

0

.

4

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

2

0

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

2

9

.

8

8

W

M

3
0
.
3
4

3
0
.
3
3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
3
1

2
9
.
4
5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3
0
.
2
8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
3
1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
3
5

3
0
.
4
4

3

0

.
4

1

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3
0
.
3
2

3

0

.
1

6

3

0

.
1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3
0
.
3
3

3
0
.
2
2

3
0
.
3
4

3

0

.
3

5

3

0

.
3

0

3

0

.
1

6

2
9
.
9
9

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.
8

8

2
9
.
9
4

2

9

.
9

1

2

9

.

9

8

2
9
.
9
7

2

9

.
9

1

3

0

.

0

0

3
0
.2

5

3
0
.1

9

3

0

.
1

0

3
0
.0

7

3
0
.0

6

3

0

.
1

0

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

29.99

3

0

.

0

4

2

9

.

9

5

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

1

8

3
0
.2

4

3
0
.1

8

2
9
.8

2

2
9
.6

9

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
7
1

2
9
.
8
3

3
0
.
1
1

30.05

(

F

a

l

l

e

n

 

T

r

e

e

)

W

M
F
 
1
.
1

P
R
F
 1

.4

P
R
F
 
1
.
4

P
R
F
 
1
.
4

P
R
F
 
1
.
4

P
W

F
 
1
.
2

P
W

F
 
1
.
2

CBF 1.9

CBF 1.9

CBF 1.9

C
B
F
 
1
.
9

C

I
F
 
2
.
0

W

M

F
 
1
.
2

H

e
d
g
e
 
1
.
8

O

H

C

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l
e

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

O

v

e

r
h

e

a

d

 
C

a

b

l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O

v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

A
s
h

G
r
a
s
s

S
P
U

A
s
h

S
P
U

E
P

S
P
U

F
 A

 I
 T

 H
 F

 U
 L

 L
 S

  
 D

 R
 O

 V
 E

T
a
rm

a
c

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

S
P
U

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

Y
e
w

A
s
h

S
t
o
r
e

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

R
u
i
n
s

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

f
a
l
l
e
n
 
t
r
e
e

Y
e
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

S
P
U

S
P
U

S
P
U

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

P

P

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

S
P
U

S
P
U

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
C
H

B
C
H

P

B
C
H

B
C
H

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

G
r
a
s
s

G
a
t
e

G
r
a
s
s

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

P

E
P

G
r
a
s
s

G
r
a
s
s
 
T
r
a
c
k

Y
e
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

Y
e
w

H
a
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

Y
e
w

E
P

G
r
a
s
s

G
r
a
v
e
l

T
a
r
m

a
c

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

S
t
u
m

p

S
t
a
y

G
a
t
e

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
V
i
e
w

S
o
u
t
h
 
E
n
d
 
C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

V
i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

V

i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

V

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

 
4

3

m

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

F
a
r
m

1

3

S
o

u
t
h

 
E

n
d

 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

s

1

6

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

M
e
a
d
o
w

1

5

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

1

7

V
i
e
w

S
o
u
t
h
 
A

c
r
e

F

a

r

m

 

H

o

u

s

e

H

o

u

g

h

t

o

n

D

i

a

n

t

h

u

s

2
9

.
9

m

1

C
o
b
b
l
e
r
s

3

S
o

u
t
h

v
i
e

w

V
i
n

e
 
C

o
t
t

B

a

r

h

a

m

 

F

a

r

m

R
o
w

a
n
s

S

o

u

t

h

 

E

n

d

L

a

v

e

n

d

e

r

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

G
e
o
r
g
e
s

L
B

2
9

.
9

m

R

e

t

r

e

a

t

O
f
f
i
c
e

E
s
t
a

t
e

1

9

T

h

a

t

c

h

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

G
a
r
a
g
e

1

M
a

r
t
i
n

s

2

2

S

o

u

t

h

 

E

n

d

G
P

©
C

r
o
w

n
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
a
n
d
 
d
a
t
a
b
a
s
e
 
r
i
g
h
t
s
 
2
0
1
6
 
O

S
 
1
0
0
0
1
9
9
8
0

G

a

t

e

R

u

i

n

s

G

a

t

e

0

S
c
a

l
e

I
n

 
M

e
t
e

r
s
 
a

t
 
1

:
2

0
0

4
6

2
8

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

J
O

B

S
C

A
L

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H
O

R

1
:
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
l
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O

T
I
T

L
E

R
E

V

A

D
o

 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
,
 
u

s
e

 
f
i
g

u
r
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
S

u
b

j
e

c
t
 
t
o

 
s
i
t
e

s
u

r
v
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
a

l
l
 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

r
y
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

u
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 
d

i
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
,
 
e

r
r
o

r
s
 
o

r
 
o

m
i
s
s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e

A
r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
b

e
f
o

r
e

 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
o

t
h

e
r
 
r
e

l
e

v
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
s
.

R
E

V
 
 
 
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

S
U

E

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
H

o
u
s
e

S
o
u
t
h
 
E

n
d

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

S
O

2
0
 
6
L
T

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
s
i
t
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n

p
l
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
p
h
o
t
o
s

 
 
 
-

L
R

1
8

1
1

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

1
6
/
2
9
1
/
0
1

N

 
 
 
A

L
R

1
3

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n
 
1
:
1
2
5
0

 
 
 
A

L
R

2
1

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
e

-
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

N

S
i
t
e
 
p
i
c
t
u
r
e
s

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
7

0
3

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
2

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
A

L
R

2
4

0
7

1
8

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 43



S

p

1

0

C

B

F
 
1
.
8

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

H

A

W

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

S

P

U

B

C

H

B

C

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

B

C

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

B

C

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

6

E

a

v

e

 
3

3

.
1

1

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

7

Eave 34.77

E
a
v
e
 
3
4
.
8
3

Eave 34.54

E
a
v
e
 
3
2
.
1
8

3

0

.

0

1

F

H

G

 
3

0

.
3

0

G

 
3
0
.
3
3

G

 
2

9

.
9

7

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

2

I

C

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

0

I

C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

K

O

 
2

9

.
7

9

R

id

g

e

 
3

8

.
1

4

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

4

.
3

5

Ridge 38.21

Ridge 37.24

R
i
d
g
e
 
3
3
.
1
2

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
8
7

3
0
.
3
9

3
0
.
3
8

3
0
.
3
7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.0

9

3

0

.2

4

3

0

.
2

2

3

0

.
3

4

3
0
.
4
3

2

9

.

8

7

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
9
3

2

9

.
9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

4

3
0
.0

3

3
0
.
0
3

2

9

.

6

7

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

62

9

.

8

9

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

2

3
0
.
1
0

2

9

.

9

1

2

9

.

9

2

3

0

.

1

0

30.20

2

9

.

8

3

2

9

.

9

2

3

0

.

1

5

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

2

7

3

0

.

1

1

30.10

30.03

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

0

1

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

9

0

3

0

.

0

5

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

0

8

3

0

.

1

4

3
0
.3

6

3
0
.
4
1

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.
8

6

2

9

.
8

5

2
9
.
5
9

2

9

.

7

9

3
0
.
0
2

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

6

3
0
.
1
4

S

M

P

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

4

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

6

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

6

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

7

/

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

1

2

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

7

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

8

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

6

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

2

0

0

.

9

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

2

4

0

.

9

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

2

4

0

.

8

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

8

0

.

7

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

5

0

/

1

T

1

7

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

5

0

/

1

T

1

9

/

S

p

9

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

8

/

S

p

2

2

0

.

9

0

/

2

T

2

2

/

S

p

1

6

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

1

0

/

S

p

1

5

0

.

5

0

/

3

T

1

9

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

4

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

2

2

0

.

8

0

/

1

T

2

0

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

4

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

8

0

.

4

0

/

1

T

1

8

/

S

p

2

0

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

2

9

.

8

8

W

M

3
0
.
3
4

3
0
.
3
3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
3
1

2
9
.
4
5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3
0
.
2
8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
3
1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
3
5

3
0
.
4
4

3

0

.
4

1

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3
0
.
3
2

3

0

.
1

6

3

0

.
1

8

2

9

.
9

4

3
0
.
3
3

3
0
.
2
2

3
0
.
3
4

3

0

.
3

5

3

0

.
3

0

3
0
.
1
6

2
9
.
9
9

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.
8

8

2
9
.9

4

2

9

.
9

1

2

9

.

9

8

2
9
.9

7

2

9

.
9

1

3

0

.

0

0

30.25

30.19

3

0

.
1

0

30.07

30.06

3

0

.
1

0

3

0

.
0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

29.99

3

0

.

0

4

2

9

.

9

5

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

1

8

30.24

30.18

29.82

29.69

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
7
1

2
9
.
8
3

3
0
.
1
1

30.05

W

M
F
 
1
.
1

PRF 1.4

P
R
F
 1

.4

P
R
F
 1

.4

P
R
F
 
1
.
4

P
W

F
 
1
.
2

P
W

F
 
1
.
2

CBF 1.9

CBF 1.9

CBF 1.9

C
B
F
 
1
.
9

C

I
F

 
2

.
0

W

M

F
 
1
.
2

H
e
d
g
e
 
1
.
8

O

H

C

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 
C

a

b

le

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

O

v

e

r
h

e

a

d

 
C

a

b

l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O

v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

A
s
h

G
r
a
s
s

S
P
U

A
s
h

S
P
U

E
P

S
P
U

F A
 I

 T
 H

 F
 U

 L
 L

 S
   

D
 R

 O
 V

 E

Tarm
ac

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

S
P
U

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

Y
e
w

A
s
h

S
t
o
r
e

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

R
u
i
n
s

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

f
a
l
l
e
n
 
t
r
e
e

Y
e
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

S
P
U

S
P
U

S
P
U

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

P

P

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

S
P
U

S
P
U

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
C
H

B
C
H

P

B
C
H

B
C
H

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

G
r
a
s
s

G
a
t
e

G
r
a
s
s

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

P

E
P

G
r
a
s
s

G
r
a
s
s
 
T
r
a
c
k

Y
e
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

Y
e
w

H
a
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

Y
e
w

E
P

G
r
a
s
s

G
r
a
v
e
l

T
a
r
m

a
c

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

S
t
u
m

p

S
t
a
y

G
a
t
e

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
V
i
e
w

S
o
u
t
h
 
E
n
d
 
C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

N
e
w

 
e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
g
a
t
e
 
s
e
t

b
a
c
k
 
5
m

 
f
r
o
m

 
r
o
a
d

4

5

°

4

5

°

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

2000

V
i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

V

i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

5099

V

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

 
4

3

m

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

S

P

U

A

S

H

S

p

7

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

6

/

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

350

3
5

0

Roof plan

N
e

w
 
K

l
a

r
g

e
s
t
e

r

b
i
o

-
d

i
s
c
 
s
e

w
a

g
e

t
r
e

a
t
m

e
n

t
 
t
a

n
k

2
2
9
3

5
9
0
0

5
0
2
0

5
0
2
0

1
0
1
7
0

W
i
n
e
 
c
e
l
l
a
r

A
r
e
a
 
-
 
1
6
.
8
1
 
m

²

G
a
m

e
 
r
o
o
m

A
r
e
a
 
-
 
4
8
.
9
9
 
m

²

762

762

762

S
t
o
r
a
g
e

A
r
e
a
 
-
 
1
6
.
8
1
 
m

²

T
V

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t
 
 
l
a
n
t
e
r
n

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t
 
 
l
a
n
t
e
r
n

C
p
d

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t
 
f
l
o
o
r

2
8
7
0

2
8
7
0

5
8
7
0

7
1
6
9

5
7
0
5

1
6
1
5

1
2
5
5

2
6
0
0

4
4
3
0

3
9
0
0

5
7
3
0

3
9
5
7

3
3
9
0

2
1
8
5

9
3
0

3
6
1
0

E
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
h
a
l
l

A
r
e
a
 
1
0
.
4
6
 
m

²

G
r
o
u
n
d
 
f
l
o
o
r

V
o
i
d

u
p

F
r
i
d
g
e

6
8
6

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

A
r
e
a
 
3
9
.
0
0
 
m

²

L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
/
 
S

t
u
d
y

A
r
e
a
 
2
3
.
6
2
 
m

²

762

T
V

R
e
a
d
i
n
g
 
c
o
r
n
e
r

A
r
e
a
 
1
4
.
3
3
 
m

²

Bookshelves

B
o
a
r
d
 
g
a
m

e
s

S
n
u
g

A
r
e
a
 
1
9
.
1
7
 
m

²

P
o
r
c
h

Bookshelves

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t
 
 
l
a
n
t
e
r
n

B
a
s
e
m

e
n
t
 
 
l
a
n
t
e
r
n

F
a
m

i
l
y
 
r
o
o
m

A
r
e
a
 
2
7
.
4
3
 
m

²

D
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
r
o
o
m

A
r
e
a
 
2
8
.
2
1
 
m

²

K
i
t
c
h
e
n

A
r
e
a
 
2
4
.
1
7
 
m

²

W
c

A
r
e
a
 
3
.
6
5
 
m

²

762

W
a
s
h
i
n
g

D
r
y
i
n
g

T
a
b
l
e

C
l
o
t
h
e
s
 
h
o
r
s
e

7
6
2

7
6
2

U
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
/
 
S

c
u
l
l
e
r
y

A
r
e
a
 
1
1
.
2
3
 
m

²

D
W

838

B
o
o
t

A
r
e
a
 
5
.
5
4
 
m

²

L
a
u
n
d
r
y
 
/
 
l
i
n
e
n

A
r
e
a
 
9
.
7
3
 
m

²

5
2
7
1

7
0
2
0

2
5
4
3

6
4
0
0

3
2
6
1

6
6
0
0

4
9
0
4

7
6
6
7

3
6
2
2

2
8
7
0

3
9
1
5

1
9
3
3

7
6
2

7
6
2

762

C
l
o
a
k
r
o
o
m

A
r
e
a
 
3
.
2
6
 
m

²

1
3
0
0

7
6
2

762

762

1
0
3
7

3
9
2
4

3
0
1
6

1
6
7
0

3
9
3
1

1
0
0
0

V
o
i
d

F
i
r
s
t
 
f
l
o
o
r

u
p

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

7
6
2

762

G
u
e
s
t
 
r
o
o
m

A
 
-
 
2
0
.
7
9
 
m

²

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
1

A
 
-
 
3
0
.
5
0
 
m

²

B
e
d
r
o
o
m

 
2

A
 
-
 
3
0
.
5
0
 
m

²

M
a
s
t
e
r
 
b
e
d
r
o
o
m

A
 
-
 
3
5
.
5
0
 
m

²

838

E
n
-
s
u
i
t
e
 
1

A
 
-
 
9
.
0
8
 
m

²

E
n
-
s
u
i
t
e
 
2

A
 
-
 
9
.
0
8
 
m

²

L
o
b
b
y

A
 
-
 
2
2
.
9
1
 
m

²

M
a
s
t
e
r
 
e
n
-
s
u
i
t
e

A
r
e
a
 
1
2
.
8
0
 
m

²

D
r
e
s
s
i
n
g

A
r
e
a
 
1
2
.
6
2
 
m

²

G
.
r
.
 
e
n
-
s
u
i
t
e

A
r
e
a
 
7
.
0
9
 
m

²

D
r
e
s
s
i
n
g

A
r
e
a
 
9
.
2
0
 
m

²

3
9
5
7

2
0
8
2

2
0
8
5

7
3
0
0

6
6
0
0

5
0
1
1

1
1
6
3

4
6
3
1

4
7
4
0

2
3
0
0

1
2
8
7

2
1
8
4

5
3
0
1

1
9
2
4

4
3
4
7

3
7
0
0

1
0
8
4

4
7
8
4

4
9
2
4

4
8
1
6

3
2
1
0

6
1
4
9

5
9
0
0

2
2
9
3

2
7
0
2

1
1
5
4

5
7
8
9

9
8
1

2
4
2
3

2
2
4
5

2
5
7
1

5
0
7
9

1

6

M
e
a
d
o
w

1

5

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

s

1

7

V
i
e
w

F

a

r

m

 

H

o

u

s

e

H

o

u

g

h

t

o

n

D

i

a

n

t

h

u

s

2
9
.
9
m

1

C
o
b
b
l
e
r
s

3

S
o
u
t
h
v
i
e
w

B

a

r

h

a

m

 

F

a

r

m

R
o
w

a
n
s

S

o

u

t

h

 

E

n

d

L

a

v

e

n

d

e

r

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

L
B

R

e

t

r

e

a

t

O
f
f
i
c
e

E
s
t
a
t
e

T

h

a

t

c

h

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

G

a

t

e

R

u

i

n

s

G

a

t

e

R

o

o

f

 

p

l

a

n

R
o
o
f
 
p
l
a
n

J
O

B

S
C

A
L

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H
O

R

1
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

u
g
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O

T
I
T

L
E

R
E

V

G

D
o

 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
,
 
u

s
e

 
f
i
g

u
r
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
S

u
b

j
e

c
t
 
t
o

 
s
i
t
e

s
u

r
v
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
a

l
l
 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

r
y
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

u
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 
d

i
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
,
 
e

r
r
o

r
s
 
o

r
 
o

m
i
s
s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e

A
r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
b

e
f
o

r
e

 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
o

t
h

e
r
 
r
e

l
e

v
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
s
.

R
E

V
 
 
 
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

S
U

E

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
H

o
u
s
e

S
o
u
t
h
 
E

n
d

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

S
O

2
0
 
6
L
T

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
s
i
t
e
 
p
l
a
n

a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n

 
 
 
-

L
R

1
8

1
1

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

1
6
/
2
9
1
/
0
2

N

S
i
t
e
 
p
l
a

n
 
1

:
5

0
0

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
7

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

1
3

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

2
1

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
e

-
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
C

L
R

0
7

0
3

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
D

L
R

0
9

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
E

L
R

2
6

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
F

L
R

0
2

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n

 
1
:
1
2
5
0

N

 
 
 
G

L
R

0
9

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 44

pbpf
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX A - REFUSED SCHEME 17/02017/FULLS

pbpf_1
Typewritten Text

pbpf_2
Typewritten Text



N
o

r
t
h

 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

H
a
n
d
 
m

a
d
e
 
c
l
a
y
 
t
i
l
e
 
r
o
o
f

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

O
a
k
 
p
a
n
e
l
l
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

p
l
i
n
t
h

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
t
o
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
s

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

S
o

u
t
h

 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

M
a
y
f
i
e
l
d
 
H

o
u
s
e

H
a
n
d
 
m

a
d
e
 
c
l
a
y
 
t
i
l
e
 
r
o
o
f

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
t
o
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
s

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
d
o
o
r
s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

E
a

s
t
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

2
7
0
0

3
0
0

2
8
0
0

W
e

s
t
 
e

l
e

v
a

t
i
o

n

2
7
0
0

3
0
0

2
8
0
0

H
a
n
d
 
m

a
d
e
 
c
l
a
y
 
t
i
l
e
 
r
o
o
f

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

p
l
i
n
t
h

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
t
o
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
s

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

H
a
n
d
 
m

a
d
e
 
c
l
a
y
 
t
i
l
e
 
r
o
o
f

D
o
u
b
l
e
 
g
l
a
z
e
d
 
w

i
n
d
o
w

s
 
i
n

a
l
u
m

i
n
i
u
m

 
f
r
a
m

e
 
p
a
i
n
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

n
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e
 
c
i
l
l

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

L
e
a
d
 
r
o
o
f
 
t
o
 
d
o
r
m

e
r
s

T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
r
e
n
d
e
r
 
f
i
n
i
s
h

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

p
l
i
n
t
h

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

p
l
i
n
t
h

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

b
a
n
d

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

b
a
n
d

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

b
a
n
d

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

b
a
n
d

N
e
u
t
r
a
l
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
e
d
 
s
a
n
d
s
t
o
n
e

c
o
l
u
m

n

S

p

1

0

C

B

F

 
1

.
8

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

H

A

W

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

H

A

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

Y

E

W

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

S

P

U

S

P

U

B

C

H

B

C

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

A

S

H

S

P

U

A

S

H

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

6

E

a

v

e

 
3

3

.
1

1

E

a

v

e

 
3

5

.
8

7

E
a
v
e
 
3
4
.
8
3

Eave 34.54

3

0

.

0

1

F

H

G

 
3

0

.
3

0

G
 
3
0
.
3
3

G

 

2

9

.
9

7

C

L

 

3

0

.

1

2

I

C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

8

.
1

4

R

i
d

g

e

 
3

4

.
3

5

Ridge 3
7.2

4

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
8
7

3
0
.
3
9

3
0
.
3
8

3
0
.
3
7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.
2

2

3

0

.
3

4

3
0
.
4
3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.
9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

0

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

4

3
0
.
0
3

2

9

.

6

7

2

9

.

7

8

2

9

.

8

62

9

.

8

9

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

1

3
0
.1

0

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.
3

6

3
0
.
4
1

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

1

6

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

3

T

8

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

7

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

2

0

/

4

T

1

2

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

2

T

6

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

2

T

1

6

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

4

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

3

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

5

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

1

2

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

2

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

8

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

1

0

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

7

/

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

1

2

/

S

p

1

0

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

7

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

4

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

2

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

6

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

9

/

S

p

5

0

.

1

0

/

1

T

6

/

S

p

2

0

0

.

2

0

/

M

u

l

t

i

8

/

S

p

1

4

0

.

2

0

/

1

T

1

6

/

2

9

.

8

8

W

M

3
0
.
3
4

3
0
.
3
3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
3
1

2
9
.
4
5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3
0
.
2
8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
3
1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3
0
.
3
5

3
0
.
4
4

3

0

.
4

1

3

0

.
2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3
0
.
3
2

3

0

.
1

6

3

0

.
1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3
0
.
3
3

3
0
.
2
2

3
0
.
3
4

3

0

.
3

5

3

0

.
3

0

3

0

.
1

6

2
9
.
9
9

3

0

.
0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.
8

8

2
9
.
9
4

2

9

.
9

1

2

9

.

9

8

2
9
.
9
7

2

9

.
9

1

3

0

.

0

0

3
0
.2

5

3
0
.1

9

3

0

.
1

0

3
0
.0

7

3
0
.0

6

3

0

.
1

0

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

29.99

3

0

.

0

4

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3

0

.

1

8

3
0
.2

4

3
0
.1

8

P
R
F
 1

.4

P
R
F
 
1
.
4

CBF 1.9

C
B
F
 
1
.
9

C

I
F
 
2
.
0

W

M

F
 
1
.
2

H

e
d
g
e
 
1
.
8

O

H

C

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l
e

O

v

e

r

h

e

a

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

O

v

e

r
h

e

a

d

 
C

a

b

l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O

v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
C
a
b
l
e

G
r
a
s
s

S
P
U

A
s
h

S
P
U

E
P

S
P
U

F
 A

 I
 T

 H
 F

 U
 L

 L
 S

  
 D

 R
 O

 V
 E

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

S
P
U

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

A
s
h

R
u
i
n
s

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

S
P
U

S
P
U

 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
C
H

B
C
H

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

G
r
a
s
s

G
a
t
e

G
r
a
s
s

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

P

E
P

G
r
a
s
s

G
r
a
s
s
 
T
r
a
c
k

Y
e
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

Y
e
w

H
a
w

A
s
h

A
s
h

A
s
h

H
a
w

Y
e
w

E
P

G
r
a
v
e
l

T
a
r
m

a
c

T
a
r
m

a
c
 
R
o
a
d

S
t
u
m

p

S
t
a
y

G
a
t
e

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
V
i
e
w

S
o
u
t
h
 
E
n
d
 
C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

N
e
w

 
e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
g
a
t
e
 
s
e
t

b
a
c
k
 
5
m

 
f
r
o
m

 
r
o
a
d

4

5

°

4

5

°

A
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

2000

V
i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

V

i
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p
l
a
y
 
4
3
m

5099

V

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

 
4

3

m

J
O

B

S
C

A
L

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H
O

R

1
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A

u
g
 
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L

R

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O

T
I
T

L
E

R
E

V

F

D
o

 
n

o
t
 
s
c
a

l
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
,
 
u

s
e

 
f
i
g

u
r
e

d
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
S

u
b

j
e

c
t
 
t
o

 
s
i
t
e

s
u

r
v
e

y
 
a

n
d

 
a

l
l
 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

r
y
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n

s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
c
h

e
c
k
e

d
 
b

y

u
s
e

r
 
a

n
d

 
a

n
y
 
d

i
c
r
e

p
a

n
c
i
e

s
,
 
e

r
r
o

r
s
 
o

r
 
o

m
i
s
s
i
o

n
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
t
h

e

A
r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
 
b

e
f
o

r
e

 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

s
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
o

t
h

e
r
 
r
e

l
e

v
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
s
.

R
E

V
 
 
 
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D

A
T

E
 
 
 
 
A

U
T

H

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
I
S

S
U

E

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
H

o
u
s
e

S
o
u
t
h
 
E

n
d

H
o
u
g
h
t
o
n

S
O

2
0
 
6
L
T

P
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a

n
d

s
p
l
a
y
 
l
i
n
e
s

 
 
 
-

L
R

1
8

1
1

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

1
6
/
2
9
1
/
0
3

 
 
 
A

L
R

0
7

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

1
3

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
B

L
R

2
1

1
2

1
6

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
p

r
e

-
p

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

 
 
 
C

L
R

0
7

0
3

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
D

L
R

0
9

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
E

L
R

2
6

0
5

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

p
p

r
o

v
a

l

 
 
 
F

L
R

0
2

0
8

1
7

I
s
s
u

e
d

 
f
o

r
 
P

l
a

n
n

i
n

g

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 45

pbpf_3
Typewritten Text

pbpf_4
Typewritten Text

pbpf_5
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 1 - REFUSED SCHEME ELEVATIONS
17/02017/FULLS



0
 
M

e
t
r
e
s

5
1
0

2
0

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
2
5
0
 
@

 
A

0

1
5

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

6

E

a

v

e

 

3

3

.

1

1

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

7

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

8

3

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

5

4

E

a

v

e

 

3

2

.

1

8

E
P

E
P

G

 

3

0

.

3

0

G

 

3

0

.

3

3

G

 

2

9

.

9

7

C
L
 
3
0
.
1
2

I
C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

P

P

P

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

8

.

1

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

4

.

3

5

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

7

.

2

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

3

.

1

2

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

8

7

3

0

.

3

9

3

0

.

3

8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
0
1

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

4

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
0

2
9
.
8
5

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
4

2
9
.
6
7

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
6

2
9
.
8
9

2
9
.
7
6

2
9
.
8
2

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
1

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
9
4

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
9
8

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
9
2

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
1

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
0

3

0

.

2

0

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
5

3
0
.
2
5

3
0
.
0
9

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
3
7

3
0
.
2
7

3
0
.
0
3

3
0
.
0
2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
1
1

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

3

3
0
.
3
0

3
0
.
0
1

2
9
.
9
9

2
9
.
9
0

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
1
4

3

0

.

3

6

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

3

7

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.

5

9

2

9

.

7

9

3

0

.

0

2

2

9

.
9

0

29.86

3

0

.

1

4

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

2

9

3

0

.

3

1

2

9

.

4

5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

2

8

3

0

.
3

7

3

0

.

3

1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

4

4

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

1

6

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

1

6

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
0
5

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

1

9

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

6

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
1
8

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

6

9

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

7

1

2

9

.

8

3

3

0

.

1

1

3

0

.

0

5

M
 
E
 
A
 
D

 
O

 
W

 
 
 
V
 
I
 
E
 
W

S
 
O

 
U

 
T
 
H

 
 
 
E
 
N

 
D

 
 
 
C
 
O

 
T
 
T
 
A
 
G

 
E
 
S

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d

B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

G

r

a

s

s

 

T

r

a

c

k

S
t
o
r
e

A
n

t
i
c
i
p

a
t
e

d
 
o

n
s
i
t
e

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
c
o

v
e

r
 
i
n

 
2

0
3

8
/
2

0
3

9

0
 
M

e
t
r
e

s
5

1
0

2
0

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
2
5
0
 
@

 
A

0

1
5

R

W

P

 

1

R

W

P

 

2

R

W

P

 

3

R

W

P

 

4

R

W

P

 

7

R

W

P

 

6

R

W

P

 

5

R

W

P

 

8

R

W

P

 

9

R

W

P

 

1

0

R

W

P

 

1

1

R

W

P

 

1

3

R

W

P

 

1

2

N

e

w

s

e

w

a

g

e

t

r

e

a

t

m

e

n

t

t

a

n

k

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

S

o

a

k

a

w

a

y

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

6

E

a

v

e

 

3

3

.

1

1

E

a

v

e

 

3

5

.

8

7

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

7

7

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

8

3

E

a

v

e

 

3

3

.

5

8

E

a

v

e

 

3

2

.

5

9

E

a

v

e

 

3

4

.

5

4

E

a

v

e

 

3

2

.

1

8

E
P

E
P

E
P

G

 

3

0

.

3

0

G

 

3

0

.

3

3

G

 

2

9

.

9

7

C
L
 
3
0
.
1
2

I
C

K

O

 

2

9

.

8

3

P

P

P

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

8

.

1

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

4

.

3

5

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

8

.

2

1

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

7

.

2

4

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

6

.

1

7

R

i

d

g

e

 

3

3

.

1

2

3

0

.

1

1

2

9

.

8

7

3

0

.

3

9

3

0

.

3

8

3

0

.

3

7

3
0
.
0
1

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

4

3

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

9

6

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

5

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
0

2
9
.
8
5

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
4

3

0

.

0

3

2
9
.
6
7

2
9
.
7
8

2
9
.
8
6

2
9
.
8
9

2
9
.
7
6

2
9
.
8
2

2
9
.
7
4

2
9
.
8
1

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
9
4

3
0
.
1
1

2
9
.
9
8

2
9
.
9
3

2
9
.
8
7

2
9
.
9
2

3

0

.

1

0

2
9
.
9
1

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
0

3

0

.

2

0

2
9
.
8
3

2
9
.
9
2

3
0
.
1
5

3
0
.
2
5

3
0
.
0
9

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
3
7

3
0
.
2
7

3
0
.
0
3

3
0
.
0
2

3
0
.
2
9

3
0
.
1
1

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

3

3
0
.
3
0

3
0
.
0
1

2
9
.
9
9

2
9
.
9
0

3
0
.
0
5

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
0
8

3
0
.
1
4

3

0

.

3

6

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

3

7

2

9

.

8

5

2

9

.

8

4

2

9

.

5

9

2

9

.

7

9

3

0

.

0

2

2

9

.
9

0

29.86

3

0

.

1

4

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

7

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

2

9

3

0

.

3

1

2

9

.

4

5

2

9

.

4

9

2

9

.

7

3

2

9

.

9

3

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

2

8

3

0

.
3

7

3

0

.

3

1

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

4

4

3

0

.

4

1

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

3

2

3

0

.

1

6

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

9

4

3

0

.

3

3

3

0

.

2

2

3

0

.

3

4

3

0

.

3

5

3

0

.

3

0

3

0

.

1

6

2

9

.

9

9

3

0

.

0

9

3

0

.

1

0

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

7

2

9

.

8

0

2

9

.

7

7

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
0
5

2

9

.

8

8

2

9

.

9

4

2

9

.

9

1

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

2

9

.

9

1

3

0

.

0

0

3

0

.

2

5

3

0

.

1

9

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

7

3

0

.

0

6

3

0

.

1

0

3

0

.

0

5

2

9

.

9

8

2

9

.

9

7

3

0

.

0

1

3

0

.

0

2

2

9

.

9

9

2

9

.

8

1

2

9

.

7

6

2

9

.

8

8

3
0
.
1
8

3

0

.

2

4

3

0

.

1

8

2

9

.

8

2

2

9

.

6

9

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

8

7

2

9

.

7

4

2

9

.

7

1

2

9

.

8

3

3

0

.

1

1

3

0

.

0

5

M
 
E
 
A
 
D

 
O

 
W

 
 
 
V
 
I
 
E
 
W

S
 
O

 
U

 
T
 
H

 
 
 
E
 
N

 
D

 
 
 
C
 
O

 
T
 
T
 
A
 
G

 
E
 
S

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

D
i
l
a
p
i
d
a
t
e
d

B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

T

a

r

m

a

c

 

R

o

a

d

G

r

a

s

s

 

T

r

a

c

k

T
a
r
m

a
c

S
t
o
r
e

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

5

5

2

4

4

2

4

4

5

4

2

1

2

1

1

4

2

4

T
6
0
4

T
6
0

2

T
6
0

3

T
6
0
9

T
6
2

4

T
6
2
6

T
6
3
1

T
6
3
3

T
6
4
4

T
6
4
7

T
6
6
0

T
6
6
1

T
6
6
2

T
6
6
3

T
6

0
1

T
6
0
5

T
6
0
6

T
6
0
7

T
6
0
8

T
6
1
0

G
6
1
1

T
6
1
2

T
6
1
3

T
6
1
4

T
6
1
5

T
6
1
6

T
6
1
7

H
6
1
9

T
6
2
2

T
6
2
3

T
6
2
1

T
6
2

5

T
6
2
7

G
6
2
8

T
6
3
0

T
6
3
2

T
6
3
4

G
6
3
5

T
6
3
6

T
6
3
7

T
6
4
0

T
6
3
9

T
6
3
8

T
6
4
1

T
6
4
2

T
6
4
3

T
6
1
8

T
6
2
9

T
6
5
3

T
6
6
4

T
6
4
5

T
6
4
6

T
6
4
8

T
6
4
9

T
6
5
0

T
6
5
1

T
6
5
5

T
6
5
4

G
6
5
2

T
6
5
9

T
6
5
7

T
6
5
6

G
6
5
8

H
6

1
9

H
6
1
9

H
6
1
9

T
6
2
0

E
x
t
r
a

c
t
 
o

f
 
B

T
7

 
T

r
e

e
 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
p

l
a

n

R

W

P

 

1

R

W

P

 

2

R

W

P

 

3

R

W

P

 

4

R

W

P

 

7

R

W

P

 

6

R

W

P

 

5

R

W

P

 

8

R

W

P

 

9

R

W

P

 

1

0

R

W

P

 

1

1

R

W

P

 

1

3

R

W

P

 

1

2

0
 
M

e
t
r
e
s

5
1
0

2
0

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
2
5
0
 
@

 
A

0

1
5

A
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
s
i
t
e
 
c
a
n
o
p
y
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
i
n
 
2
0
3
8
/
2
0
3
9

w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
d
w

e
l
l
i
n
g

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
e

d
 
%

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
c
o

v
e

r
 
i
n

 
2

0
 
y
e

a
r
s

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
e

d
 
%

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
c
o

v
e

r
 
i
n

 
2

0
 
y
e

a
r
s
 
w

i
t
h

r
e

s
i
d

e
n

t
i
a

l
 
d

w
e

l
l
i
n

g

w
w

w
.
b

a
r
r
e

l
l
t
r
e

e
c
a

r
e

.
c
o

.
u

k

P
r
o

v
i
d

e
d

 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
f
s
:
 
E

N
C

/
0

7
1

1
1

6
-
2

X
4

 
&

 
1

6
/
2

9
1

/
0

2
 
R

e
v
 
G

P
e

r
m

i
s
s
i
o

n
 
i
s
 
g

r
a

n
t
e

d
 
t
o
 
s
c
a

l
e
 
f
r
o

m
 
t
h

i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g

f
o

r
 

L
o

c
a

l
 

A
u

t
h

o
r
i
t
y
 

P
l
a

n
n

i
n

g
 

A
p

p
r
o

v
a

l
 

p
u

r
p

o
s
e

s

r
e

l
a

t
i
n

g
 
t
o
 
t
r
e

e
 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
m

e
a

s
u

r
e

s
 
o

n
l
y
.
 
 
 
W

h
e

r
e

a
p

p
l
i
c
a

b
l
e

 
t
h

i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b

e
 
r
e

a
d

 
i
n

 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n

w
i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
a

r
b

o
r
i
c
u

l
t
u

r
a

l
 
r
e

p
o

r
t
.
 
T

h
i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
h

e

c
o

p
y
r
i
g

h
t
 
o

f
 
 
B

a
r
r
e

l
l
 
T

r
e

e
 
C

o
n

s
u

l
t
a

n
c
y
 
2

0
1

8
.

T
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
o
l
o
u
r
 
o
n
l
y
.

B
a

r
r
e

l
l
 
P

l
a

n
 
R

e
f
:
1

7
3

4
7

-
B

T
8

c

T
r
e
e
 
c
a
n

o
p

y
 
p

r
o

j
e
c
t
i
o

n
 
p

l
a
n

T
r
e
e
 
c
a
n
o
p
y
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
s
 
a
t
 
M

e
a
d
o
w

 
V

i
e
w

,

 
(
l
a
n
d
 
a
d
j
a
c
e
n
t
)
,
 
H

o
u
g
h
t
o
n
,
 
S

t
o
c
k
b
r
i
d
g
e

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
v
e

r
y
 
l
o

w
 
q

u
a

l
i
t
y

e
l
d
e

r
 
a
n

d
 
m

i
s
c
 
s
c
r
u

b

s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
–

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

U
n

s
u

s
t
a
i
n
a

b
l
e

 
a

s
h
 
s
a

p
l
i
n
g

g
r
o

w
i
n
g

 
i
n
 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

r
e

m
a

i
n

s
 
o
f
 
d

i
l
a

p
i
d

a
t
e

d

b
u

i
l
d

i
n
g

 
–

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

S
m

a
l
l
 
t
h

o
r
n

 
t
r
e

e
s
 
l
o
c
a

t
e
d

a
d

j
a
c
e

n
t
 
t
o

 
l
o

w
 
q

u
a

l
i
t
y
 
a

s
h

 
t
r
e

e

S
m

a
l
l
 
a

n
d

 
u

n
s
u

s
t
a

i
n

a
b
l
e

 
a
s
h

 
a

n
d

t
h

o
r
n

 
s
a

p
l
i
n

g
s
 
g

r
o

w
i
n

g
 
i
n

 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o
n

w
i
t
h

 
r
e

m
a

i
n

s
 
o

f
 
d

i
l
a
p

i
d
a

t
e

d
 
b

u
i
l
d

i
n

g
 
–

T
O

 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

A
r
e
a

 
o

f
 
s
t
r
u

c
t
u
r
a

l
l
y
 
p
o

o
r
 
e

l
m

,

h
a

z
e
l
,
 
a

n
d

 
e
l
d

e
r
 
–

 
C

O
P

P
I
C

E

T
O

 
G

R
O

U
N

D
 
L

E
V

E
L

G
r
o
u

p
 
o
f
 
s
t
r
u

c
t
u

r
a
l
l
y
 
p

o
o

r
 
e

l
d

e
r

o
f
 
l
o

w
 
v
i
t
a

l
i
t
y
 
–

 
C

O
P

P
I
C

E
 
T

O

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
L

E
V

E
L

T
h

e
 
a

b
o

v
e

 
c
a

n
o
p

y
 
p

r
o
j
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
a

s
s
u

m
e

s
:

·
N

o
 
p
r
o

a
c
t
i
v
e

 
t
r
e

e
 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t
.

·
S

i
g

n
i
f
i
c
a
n

t
 
d
e

c
l
i
n

e
 
i
n

 
t
h
e

 
o
n

s
i
t
e

 
a

s
h

 
(
F

r
a

x
i
n

u
s
 
s
p

)
 
p
o

p
u
l
a

t
i
o

n
 
d
u

e
 
t
o

C
h

a
l
a

r
a

 
d

i
e

b
a
c
k
 
(
c
a
u

s
e
d

 
b

y
 
f
u
n

g
a

l
 
p

a
t
h

o
g
e

n
 
H

y
m

e
n

o
s
c
y
p

h
u
s

f
r
a
x
i
n
e

u
s
)
.

·
S

c
r
u

b
/
l
a

u
r
e

l
/
b

r
a

m
b

l
e

 
l
e

v
e

l
s
 
t
o

 
s
i
g

n
i
f
i
c
a

n
t
l
y
 
i
n

c
r
e

a
s
e

 
a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

r
o
m

i
s
e

u
n

d
e

r
s
t
o

r
e

y
 
v
i
t
a
l
i
t
y
 
a

n
d
 
n

a
t
u

r
a
l
 
r
e
g

e
n
e

r
a
t
i
o
n

.

A
n
t
i
c
i
p

a
t
e
d

 
2
0

 
y
e
a

r
 
g
r
o

w
t
h
 
d
i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n

s
 
(
m

e
t
r
e
s
)
 
o
f
 
n
e
w

 
p
r
o
p
o

s
e
d

 
n

e
w

 
t
r
e

e
 
p
l
a
n

t
i
n

g
:

T
y
p

e
 
1

 
–
 
Y

e
w

 
–
 
7

m
 
h
i
g

h
 
w

i
t
h
 
5
m

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e
r
 
(
1
8

0
%

 
i
n
c
r
e
a

s
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
s
i
z
e

 
a

t
 
p
l
a
n

t
i
n

g
)

T
y
p

e
 
2

 
–
 
C

r
a

b
 
a

p
p
l
e
 
–

 
6

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
4
m

 
c
a
n
o

p
y
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e
r
 
(
1

4
0
%

 
i
n

c
r
e
a

s
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
s
i
z
e

 
a

t
 
p
l
a
n

t
i
n

g
)

T
y
p

e
 
3

 
–
 
F

i
e

l
d
 
m

a
p

l
e

–
 
1
0
m

 
h
i
g

h
 
w

i
t
h
 
7
m

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e

r
 
(
2
3

3
%

 
i
n
c
r
e
a

s
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
s
i
z
e

 
a

t
 
p

l
a
n
t
i
n

g
)

T
y
p

e
 
4

 
–
 
L

i
m

e
 
–

 
1
0

m
 
h

i
g

h
 
w

i
t
h
 
6
m

 
c
a

n
o
p

y
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e

r
 
(
3
0

0
%

 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
s
i
z
e

 
a
t
 
p
l
a

n
t
i
n
g
)

T
y
p

e
 
5

 
–
 
W

i
l
d
 
c
h

e
r
r
y
 
–
 
1
2

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
7
m

 
c
a
n
o

p
y
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e
r
 
(
3

8
0
%

 
i
n

c
r
e
a

s
e
 
f
r
o

m
 
s
i
z
e

 
a

t
 
p
l
a
n

t
i
n

g
)

T
h

e
 
a

b
o
v
e

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
p
r
o

j
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
a

s
s
u

m
e

s
:

·
P

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
v
e

 
t
r
e

e
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 
b

y
 
f
u
t
u

r
e

 
o

c
c
u

p
i
e

r
 
i
n

 
c
o

n
j
u

n
c
t
i
o

n
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e

2
0
 
y
e

a
r
 
w

o
o

d
l
a

n
d

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 
p

l
a

n
.

·
A

n
y
 
t
r
e

e
 
l
o

s
s
e

s
 
a

r
i
s
i
n

g
 
f
r
o

m
 
C

h
a

l
a

r
a

 
w

i
l
l
 
b

e
 
r
e

p
l
a

c
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
n

e
w

 
t
r
e

e
s

b
y
 
t
h

e
 
o

c
c
u

p
i
e

r
 
i
n

 
l
i
n

e
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
s
e

l
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
m

i
x
 
s
e

t
 
o
u

t
 
i
n

 
t
h

e

w
o

o
d

l
a

n
d

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
 
p

l
a

n
.

·
R

e
d

u
c
t
i
o

n
 
a

n
d
 
c
o

n
t
r
o

l
 
o

f
 
i
n

a
p

p
r
o

p
r
i
a

t
e
 
t
r
e

e
 
s
p
e

c
i
e

s
 
l
e

a
d

i
n

g
 
t
o

u
n

d
e

r
s
t
o

r
e

y
 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t
 
(
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
a

l
l
y
 
i
n

 
t
h

e
 
w

e
s
t
e

r
n

 
s
i
t
e

 
e

x
t
e

n
t
s
)

p
r
o

v
i
d
i
n

g
 
o

n
w

a
r
d

 
n

a
t
u

r
a

l
 
r
e
g

e
n

e
r
a

t
i
o

n
.

+
2

3
%

 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
i
n

c
r
e

a
s
e

6
8

%
 
t
o

t
a

l
 
c
a

n
o

p
y
 
c
o

v
e

r

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee - 6 November 2018

Page 46


	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	7 18/01953/FULLS - 24.07.2018
	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 1
	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 2
	Sheets and Views
	PA 02 Proposed (2)


	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	PA 03 Proposed (2)


	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	17347-BT7-A0-LS R
	OLE1



	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 5
	Sheets and Views
	PA 01 Existing Location and site plan


	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 6
	Sheets and Views
	PA 02 Proposed


	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 7
	Sheets and Views
	PA 03 Proposed


	18_01953_FULLS PCC Plan 8
	Sheets and Views
	17347-BT8-A0-LS R
	OLE1







